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BO A/C : Beneficial Owner Account or Depository Account 

CDBL : Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd. 
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Companies Act : Companies Act, 1994 (Act. No. XVIII of 1994) 

CSE : Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 

DSE : Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 

EPS : Earnings Per Share 

Issue : Rights Issue 

Issuer Company : Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.  

Issue Managers : Alpha Capital Management Limited and Banco Finance and Investment Limited,  

Underwriters : 
Alpha Capital Management Limited, Banco Finance and Investment Limited, SBL Capital 
Management Ltd and CAPM Advisory Limited.  

NAV : Net Asset Value of the Company 

Offering Price : Price of the Securities of Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd being Offered 
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RI : Rights Issue 

Rights Issue Rules : Securities and Exchange Commission (Rights Issue) Rules, 2006 

RJSC : Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms 
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The Company : Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.  

GHAIL : Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.  

DANIDA : Danish International Development Agency Under the Danish Embassy  
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RIGHTS ISSUE OF SHARES 

 

October 02, 2019 
 
 
 
Dear Shareholder(s),    
 
We are pleased to inform you that, the honorable shareholders of the Company in the 14th Annual General Meeting 
held on December 19, 2018 approved rights issuance of 119,909,790 Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10.00 each at par totaling 
Tk. 1,199,097,900.00 at 1 (One): 1 (One) [R] ratio i.e. 1(One) Rights share for 1(One) existing share held on the record 
date for entitlement. Later the Board of Directors in its board meeting held on April 7, 2019 recommended to revise 
the right offer for issuance of 89,932,342 ordinary shares at par totaling Tk. 899,323,420.00 at 4 (Four): 3 (Three) [R] 
ratio i.e. 3 (Three) Rights share for every 4 (Four) existing shares held on the record date which has been approved in 
the 7th extra ordinary general meeting (EGM) held on May 26, 2019.           
 
The purpose of issuance of Rights Shares is expansion of existing production and distribution channels and pay off 
bank loans of the Company.    
 
Having satisfactory operation, total comprehensive income of the Company is Tk. 70,208,466.00 for the period ended 
ƻƴ {ŜǇǘŜƳōŜǊ олΣ нлмуΦ ¢ƘŜ ǎǳŎŎŜǎǎ ŎƻǳƭŘƴΩǘ ƘŀǾŜ ōŜŜƴ ǇƻǎǎƛōƭŜ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ǎǳǇǇƻǊǘ ƻŦ ƻǳǊ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎ ŀƴŘ ŜŦŦƛŎƛŜƴǘ 
direction of the Board of Directors as well as patronization and active participation of our valued shareholders. 
 
To maintain the growth and to increase the capital base of your Company, we hope you would come forward with full 
support and assistance to make the offer a success. 
 
A self-explanatory Rights Share Offer Document prepared in the light of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(Rights Issue) Rules, 2006 of the Securities and Exchange Commission is enclosed for your kind information and 
evaluation. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, 
 
 
 
  
                SD/- 
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani  
   Managing Director 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd  
Shanta Western Tower, Level -5, Space#501 & 502,  

186, Gulshan -  Tejgaon Link Road Tejgaon I/A Dhaka -  1208  

Phone: +880 -2-8878784 -7, Fax: +880 -2-8878204,  

Email: info@goldenharvestbd.com, Web: www.goldenharvestbd.com         
 

 

 

Company Milestones 
 

Stock Summary & Financial Information 

Authorized Capital Tk.          2,500 Million 

As per Audited Financial Statements for the 
period ended 30 September 2018.     

Paid up Capital  Tk. 1,090.09 Million 

¢ƻǘŀƭ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ Tk. 2,502.52 Million 

Total Assets Tk. 6,814.17 Million 

Total Operating Profit Tk. 200.43 Million 

Net Cash Generated from Operating activities Tk. 193.87 Million 

No. of Employees 1,104 Persons 
 

Corporate History 

Incorporation of the Company C-53850 (515)/2004  August 10,2004 

Commencement of Commercial Operation N/A Financial year 2006 

Conversion to Public Ltd. Company N/A June 30, 2010 

BOI Registration J 04050504010-H  

TIN Certificate 414904223078  

VAT Registration 18061004159  

Trade License 03-082876  

Import Registration Certificate BA- 0218902   

Corporate Office 
Shanta Western Tower, Level-5, Space#501 & 502, 186, Gulshan- Tejgaon Link Road 
Tejgaon I/A Dhaka- 1208.  

Factory Bokran, Monipur, Bobanipur, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur.  
 

Board of Directors 

Chairman Mr. Enamuzzaman Chowdhury  

Managing Director Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani  

Directors 

Mr. Mohius Samad Choudhury  

Ms. Nadia Khalil Choudhury  

Mr. Moqsud Ahmed Khan  

Mr. Azizul Huque   

Independent Directors  
Mrs. Anita Ghazi Islam  

Alena Akhter Khan 

Corporate Officials 

Company Secretary Mr. Nirmal Chandra Sardar  

Chief Financial Officer Ms. Rojina Akhter, FCA 

Others Information 

Statutory Auditor 

S. F. AHMED & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
House 51 (2nd floor), Road 9, Block F, Banani, Dhaka 1213, Bangladesh.  
Tel: +88 02 9870957, 9894026; Fax: 88 02 55042314   
Website: www.sfacoaa.com; E-mail: sfaco@dhaka.net, sfali@connectbd.com.   

Legal Advisor 
Ms.Sameera Mahmud 
LEX HARMONI 

 

 

http://www.goldenharvestbd.com/
mailto:sfaco@dhaka.net
mailto:sfali@connectbd.com
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE RIGHTS OFFER [see rule-8(c)] 
 

Corporate Status and Background 
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. was incorporated in Bangladesh as a private limited company on August 10, 2004 

and subsequently converted into public limited company on June 30, 2010 the registered office of the company is 

located at Bokran, Monipur, Bobanipur, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur. GHAIL become a listed company since March 04, 

2013.   

 

Nature of Business 

Golden Harvest is one of the earliest entrants in market and become a market leader in Bangladesh with its several 

projects through mega expantion plan.  The major projects of the company and its subsidiaries are Dry Food Products, 

Frozen Ready to Eat Meals, Ice Cream, Fresh Milk etc. GHAIL diversification strategy led it to invest in subsidiaries, 

which now manufacture varaities of products.  

 

History of the Company 

Golden Harvest has identified the potential for Ready-to-Eat line of products for the people of all levels specially city 

duelers with busy life. Some of these are deshi foods namely roti, deshi paratha, aloo paratha, aloo puri, whole 

chicken, dal puri, vegetable singara, potato chop, different types of evening snacks etc. It is the first ever purpose-

built frozen vegetables and snack food processing plant in Bangladesh. The entire Plant was designed and supervised 

by the Danish experts with the full technical assistance from DANIDA (Danish International Development Agency 

under the Danish Embassy). The company has become success to establish an international class of cold chain 

network (a tepmperature controlled supply chain) from farmers to end user or customers to ensure better product 

quality. It has got several certifications of national and international institutions in terms of foods standard and 

quality management system such as, ISO 9001:2008, (which is the international standard on quality management 

system) ISO 22000:2005, (which is the international standard on food safety management system applied in food 

chain) HACCP, (which is a systematic preventive approach to food safety from biological, chemical and physical 

hazards in production process) BSTI, (Certification centers on essential elements of products and quality management 

system).  
 

Corporate Social Responsibility  

The company is also concern about the responsibility to the society and stakeholders on a voluntary basis and runs a 

CSR program that includes Bangladesh Human Rights Foundation, TAC Charitable Hospital, Alvina Samdani Trust and 

Samdani Art Foundation.  
 

Vision 

To be the most trusted and preffered brand to every household of Bangladesh.  
 

Mission 

Consistently deliver international standard innovative products and services for improved lifestyle.  
 

The Rights Issue 
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd plans to increase paid-up capital through issuance of Rights Shares. The Board of 
Directors of GHAIL in its 126th meeting held on October 27, 2018, recommended for issuance of 119,909,790 Ordinary 
Shares of Tk.10.00 each at an issue price of Tk.10.00 per share, totaling Tk. 1,199,097,900 offered on the basis of 
01[R]:01, i.e. 01 (one) right shares for every 01 (one) existing ordinary share held on the record date for entitlement 
of Rights Share. Later the Board of Directors in its board meeting held on April 7, 2019 recommended to revise the 
right offer for issuance of 89,932,342 ordinary shares at par totaling Tk. 899,323,420.00/- at 3(Three) [R]: 4(Four) 
ratio i.e. 3(Three) Rights shares for every 4(Four) existing shares held on the record date which has been approved in 
the 7th extra ordinary general meeting (EGM) held on May 26, 2019. Subject to approval of Bangladesh Securities and 
Exchange Commisson (BSEC).   
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Issue Price  
 

The Rights offer is issuance of 89,932,342 Ordinary Shares of Tk.10.00 each at an issue price of Tk.10.00 per share, 
totaling Tk. 899,323,420.00/- offered on the basis of 03[R]:04, i.e. 03 (three) right shares for every 04 (four) existing 
share held on the record date for entitlement of Rights Share.      
 
 

 

RISK FACTORS AND MANAGEMENT PERCEPTION ABOUT THE RISKS [see rule-8(c)] 

 

Risk is always associated with investments and investing in any company belonging to whatever sector has its own 
both internal and external risk factors. Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited is exposed to various forms of 
industrial, operational, environmental and financial risk arising from transactions entered into and the economic 
environment within which it operates. GHAIL Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Division, is very highly related and 
connected to 'Sustainability" and forms a part of the Company's business process. The objective of the Risk 
Management Strategy of the Company is to identify and manage risk, risk mitigation, harness opportunities, adapt to 
changing environment and adopt long-term and short-term strategies which link well with the overall objectives of 
the Company and the Group. Risks are identified and assessed through a Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) 
document unique to the Company's business. The Company rates its level of risk for each identified risk event using 
an evaluation of the expected severity of impact of the risk event and the likelihood of its occurrence. Further, the 
velocity of impact of a risk event, or the speed at which the risk event will impact the organization, in the RCSA 
document, has served to priorities risks and their relevant mitigation plans. The Company is the ultimate owners of 
their risks and are responsible for reviewing their RCSA form on a quarterly basis. This reviewed RCSA form is then 
considered by the GHAIL ERM division in consolidating risks for the Group. 
 
The information given below does not assert to be exhaustive. Additional risks or uncertainties are presently not 
known to the company or that are currently deemed immaterial may also have a material adverse effect on the 
/ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΣ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǊŜǎǳƭts. The order in which the risks are presented below is not 
intended to provide an indication of the likelihood of their occurrence nor of their severity or significance. 
 
Prior to accepting their Entitlements, Applicants should carefully consider the following risk factors, as well as the 
other information contained in this right offer documents. 
 
i) Internal risk factors may include, among others: 
 
1. Credit Risks:  
This is the risk of default on a debt that may arise because of default by the borrower to pay the loan. In operating 
any business there is always credit risk lies in the business. As there is always lending and borrowing between parties 
in the form of money and goods. 
 
Management Perception: 
The Company mitigates such risk by distributor financing system, credit evaluation of dealers, holding of bank 
guarantees, evaluation of creditworthiness before approval of additional credit together with measures to adequately 
safeguard exposures with sufficient asset backed securities. 
 
2. Liquidity Risks: 
The risk that a company may be unable to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability 
to convert its current assets to cash without a loss of capital or income. Liquidity is a common phenomenon of the 
business. 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL has a history of on time payments and receipts and has built up substantial cash reserves since its inception. 
The company processes receipts daily and has strict controls over its daily cash inflow and outflow. Cash generation 
from existƛƴƎ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴǎ ƛǎ ŀŘŜǉǳŀǘŜ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ ŜȄǇŜŎǘŜŘ ƻǳǘƭŀȅǎΦ Lƴ ǎǘǊŜǎǎŜŘ ŎƻƴŘƛǘƛƻƴǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǎǘǊƻƴƎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭǎ 
will help them secure external financing. 
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оΦ wƛǎƪ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ǘƘŜ ƛǎǎǳŜǊΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ƛƴ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎΣ Ƨƻƛƴǘ ǾŜƴǘǳǊŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎΤ 
If the sǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎ ƳŀƪŜ ƭƻǎǎ ƛǘ ŀŦŦŜŎǘǎ ǇŀǊŜƴǘ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ. In case of associates there is a chance of 
ŘŜŎƭƛƴŜ ǾŀƭǳŜ ƻŦ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎΩ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΦ hƴ ǘƘŜ ƻǘƘŜǊ ƘŀƴŘΣ ƛƴ ŀ Ƨƻƛƴǘ ǾŜƴǘǳǊŜ ŜŀŎƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀƴǘǎ ƛǎ 
responsible for profit and losses associates with it.  
 
Management Perception: 
The issuer has two subsidiaries which are same in line (food industry) namely Golden Harvest Ice Cream and Golden 
Harvest Dairy their products are Icecream and milk products respectively. The issuer has good control over these 
companies in terms of supervision and corporate services resulting both of them have a well contribution to parent 
(GHAIL) company. However, if these subsidiaries suffer or there is a chances of loss GHAIL is ready to support more by 
providing services from more competent persons from parent. The issuer has one associate (Golden Harvest QSR Ltd), 
which is a loss-making company. But the investment is very low compared to subsidiaries and the issuer has no plan to 
invest more in it. So, there are no pictorial risks associated with its subsidiaries and associate in near future.  
 
4. Significant revenue generated from limited number of customers, losing any one or more of which would have a 
material adverse effect on the issuer; 
If the ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜǾŜƴǳŜ ōŀǎŜ ƛǎ ŎƻƴƴŜŎǘŜŘ ǿƛǘƘ ŦŜǿ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎΣ ƭƻǎƛƴƎ ŀƴȅ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ŦǊƻƳ ŀƴȅ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊ ƻŦ ǘƘŀǘ 
limited base may affect the company adversely.  
 
Management Perception: 
The issuer is related to food industry so, by nature there is a limited chance of bulk sale to individual customer except 
some of the corporate sales so, losing any single customer will not affect significantly to its revenue. However, GHAIL 
always maintain good customer relationship by providing qualityful products for end users/customers on the other 
hand the issuer is increasing its customer data base day by day. So, risk associated with losing few customers is almost 
nothing.   
 
5. Dependency on few or single supplier of raw materials, failure of which may affect production adversely; 
 If the company depends on a single supplier for products or raw materials, failure of the supplier to deliver products 
may affect the production of the company badly.  
 
Management Perception: 
The company has many renowned suppliers that help to get competitive advantage over other and doing business 
efficiently as well as, raw material suppliers of food industry which is needed for issuer is not limited in Bangladesh (an 
agriculturally based country). With this view, GHAIL is not dependent on a single or few suppliers.   
 
6. More than 20% revenue of the issuer comes from sister concern or associate or subsidiary; 
 If large scale of revenue of the issuer comes from sister concern or associate or subsidiary then, it is most likely 
dependable on its subsidiary or associates. Negative impact on their financial statements also affect the financial 
statements of issuer.  
 
Management Perception: 
!ƳƻƴƎ ǘǿƻ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ƻƴŜ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜ ƻƴƭȅ ƻƴŜ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊȅΩǎ (Golden Harvest Ice Cream) contribution is more than 
20% of total revenue which is 63%. The cause of large percentage is the percentage of holding amounting 99.9998% of 
total ordinary shares of subsidiary company (Golden Harvest Ice Cream). As the issuer is holding almost 100% of this 
subsidiary so, it is under the close supervision of issuer to mitigate all the risk associated with it.  
 
7. Negative earnings, negative cash flows from operating activities, declining turnover or profitability, during last 
five years, if any; 
 
Management Perception: 
We have been operating our business efficiently. We are profitable entity and we have not experienced with negative 
earning and negative cash flow from operating for last five years.  
 
8. Risk associated with useful economic life of plant and machinery, if purchased in second hand or reconditioned; 
If second hand mechineries are purchased or used, there is a chance of machinery breakdown consequensing high 
repair and maintainance cost and reduction of productivity.  
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Management Perception: 
We are used to using brand new machineries. Hence, there is no chance to use second hand or reconditioned 
machineries.  
 
09. Potential conflict of interest, if the sponsors or directors of the issuer are involved with one or more ventures 
which are in the same line of activity or business as that of the issuer and if any supplier of raw materials or major 
customer is related to the same sponsors or directors. 
In these cases, there is high chance of compromise among the related companies because of conflict of Interest. 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL is always maintaining armΩs length transaction with all of its relatd party. So, risk related to conflict of interest 
is not potential.  
 
10. Related party transactions entered into by the company those may adversely affect competitive edge. 
Related party transaction of the issuer creates conflict of interest which reduces the competitive advantage of the 
issuer.  
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL did not engage any such transaction, which may adversely affect competitive edge. 
 
11. Any restrictive covenants in any shareholders' agreement, sponsors' agreement or any agreement for debt or 
preference shares or any restrictive covenants of banks in respect of the loan or credit limit and other banking 
facilities; 
All information must be known to the poǘŜƴǘƛŀƭ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊ ǎƻ ǘƘŀǘ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ Ƴŀȅ ƴƻǘ ōŜ ƘŀƳǇŜǊŜŘ ƛƴ ŦǳǘǳǊŜΦ {ƻΣ 
any restrictive covenants, if it goes against potential investors, will make investors in threat. 
 
Management Perception: 
There is no such type of covenants on GHAIL except some restrictive covenants of the banks like changes of sponsor 
directors and some mortgage agreements.  
 
12. Business operations may be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or increase in wage demands by 
employees.  
 
Management Perception: 
Employee unrest may occur in any time of business and it is important to deal with labour unrest carefully. GHAIL has 
been operating business since 2006 and it is a profitable entity. We have different incentive packages for our 
employees so that they can be beneficial to such package. Because we believe that employees are very important part 
of our business and we all know that there are government rules relating to paying minimum wage.   
 
 
 
13. Seasonality of the business of the issuer; 
Fluctuation of sales revenue in different seasons may be a risk factor for any business. Because cash flow in unseason 
is suppose to be very low or in some business sectors it is almost zero but, some of the cost are fixed in all seasons.  
 
Management Perception: 
The issuer and its subsidiaries are operating food άwhich is one of the basic needs of humanbeingέ business. So, there 
is no seasonal variation in this sector.  
 
14. Expiry of any revenue generating contract that may adversely affect the business; 
Contracts which is suppose to be expire within short time indicates future fall of revenue therefore profit. 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL has no such type of contract, materially affect the business due to its termination. However, there are some 
contracts of corporate sales which is renewed periodically.  
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15. Excessive dependence on any key management personnel absence of whom may have adverse effect on the 
ƛǎǎǳŜǊΩǎ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΤ 
Excessive dependence on key management affects the business if the management is changed in future, which will 
create vacuum. Besides, if the key management personnel are of bad intention, excessive dependence will also affect 
the business. 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL has been running its business over a long time with name and fame. It is a structured Company. It practices 
strong human resources management and corporate governance principles. Succession planning is always in our mind 
and Company is running very professionally. As such, there is very little possibility of adversely affect the business due 
to excessive dependence on key management personnel. 
 
16. Enforcement of contingent liabilities which may adversely affect financial condition; 
Contingent liabilities are future potential liabilities having impact on financial statements if it is probable. It reduced 
the assets or create obligation to pay the liabilities.  
 
Management Perception: 
There are no such types of issues in business operation of the issuer for which contigent liabilities may arise in future.  
 
17. Insurance coverage not adequately protect against certain risks of damages; 
Insurance ensures and protects to deal with uncertainty of future material loss/damage. So, insurance coverage is 
important for the business.   
 
Management Perception: 
We have fire insurance coverage for all the relating issues that are risky to operating our business and also have group 
insurance for employees. 
 
18. Absence of assurance that directors will continue its engagement with Company after expiry of lock in period; 
Directors run the company with the accumulated finance from public and other financing source. If directors 
discontinue to run the business, there will be negative impact on business and share price as well.  
 
Management Perception: 
Directors of GHAIL are involved in the business for long time as well as some of them are sponsor director and they will 
continue the business after expiry of lock in period as well.  
 
19. Ability to pay any dividends in future will depend upon future earnings, financial condition, cash flows, working 
capital requirements and capital expenditure; 
5ƛǾƛŘŜƴŘ ǇŀȅƳŜƴǘ ƛǎ ƘƛƎƘƭȅ ŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ ƻƴ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ǘƻ ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘŜ ǇƻǎƛǘƛǾŜ ŎŀǎƘ Ŧƭƻǿ ŦǊƻƳ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻŦ 
the business. If company cannot earn good amount of profit from operation, it is unlikely to pay dividend. 
 
Management Perception: 
We have been a profitable entity over a long time and the profit is on the uptrend. So, we are in belief that we will be 
able to pay dividend from our earning profit. GHAIL is declaring a handsome dividend to the shareholders of the 
company.   
 
20. History of non-operation, if any;  
History of non-operation indicates weak operational management of the company. Non-operation leads to negative 
cash flow, incurring of losses and bankruptcy in worst case scenario.  
 
Management Perception:  
The Company is in commercial operation since May, 2006. There is no history of non-operation in business of the 
company till now. The Company is an independent body which is operated by its Memorandum & Articles of 
Association and other applicable laws and regulations of the country. The financial strength of the Company is very 
satisfactory. The Directors of the Board are well reputed and experienced and the operation of the company is guided 
by good team of professionals. Demand for the products of the company is increasing day by day. So, the chance of 
non-operation of the business of the Company is almost nil. 
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21. Risks related to engagement in new type of business, if any; 
If it is new business, there is risk of feasibility of the new business. 
 
Management Perception:  
There is no as such risk relating to engagement in new type of business.    
 
22. Risk in investing the securities being offered with comparison to other available investment options; 
If the issue price goes down after floating, there is investment risk for the prospective investors. 
 
Management Perception:  
We are profitable entity over long time and we have been operating our business efficiently. Therefore, it is not risky in 
investing securities in comparison with other available investment option. 
 
23.  Any penalty or action taken by any regulatory authorities for non-compliance with provisions of any law; 
Action taken by the regulatory authority creates a negative impact on the issuer. 
 
Management Perception: 
No penalty or action taken by any regulatory authorities for non-compliance with provisions of any law in the history 
of GHAIL.  
 
24.  Litigations against the issuer for Tax and VAT related matters and other government claims, along with the 
disclosures of amount, period for which such demands or claims are outstanding, financial implications and the 
status of the case; 
{ǳŎƘ ǘȅǇŜ ƻŦ ƭƛǘƛƎŀǘƛƻƴ ŦƻǊ ¢ŀȄ ŀƴŘ ±!¢ ǊŜƭŀǘŜŘ ƳŀǘǘŜǊǎ ŀǊŜ ŀƭǿŀȅǎ ƘŀǊƳŦǳƭ ŦƻǊ ŎƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǊŜǇǳǘŀǘƛƻƴΦ  
 
Management Perception: 
There is no litigation relating to Tax, VAT or other government claims against the issuer company.  
 
25.  Registered office or factory building or place of operation is not owned by the issuer; 
Factory building should be owned by the company. Otherwise, there is risk of hike in factory rent in the years to come 
and threat of shifting the factory sometimes along with dismantaling cost as well.  
 
Management Perception: 
The registered office and factory premises are fully owned property of the issuer so, there is no risk in this regard.   
 
26. Lack of renewal of existing regulatory permissions/ licenses; 
Lack of renewal of permission/ licenses may cause penalty and others action.  
 
 
 
Management Perception: 
Renewals and reregistrations of different types of permissions / licenses are continuous process and there is no lack of 
renewal of these permissions / licenses of the issuer.  
 
27. Failure in holding AGM or declaring dividend or payment of interest by any listed securities of the issuer or any 
of its subsidiaries or associates; 
Failure in holding AGM or declaring dividend may indicates a bad impression to the shareholders and the market price 
of the issuer.   
 
Management Perception: 
The issuer is conducting its Annual General Meeting (AGM) regularly and declaring satisfactory dividend (cash/stock) 
to all of its shareholders every year. The history of last five years are as follows: 
 

Accounting Year AGM Title Date of AGM held & Dividend declared 
Declared Dividend 

Rate (%) 

2013-2014 10th AGM December 15, 2014 
Cash- 10% 

Stock- Nil 
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2014-2015 11th AGM December 15, 2015 
Cash- Nil 

Stock- 10% 

2015-2016 12th AGM December 29, 2016 
Cash- Nil 

Stock- 10% 

2016-2017 13th AGM December 21, 2017 
Cash- Nil 

Stock- 10% 

2017-2018 14th AGM December 19, 2018 
Cash- Nil 

Stock- 10% 

 
28. Issuances of securities at lower than the IPO offer price within one year;   
The management ultimate goal is to maximize the wealth of the company. If share price goes up, it maximizes wealth 
of the company. On the other hand, if share price goes down, it minimizes the wealth of the company. 
 
Management Perception: 
The issuer did not issue any securities lower than IPO offer price or GHAIL has no plan to do so within one years of 
time.  
 
29. Refusal of application for public issue of any securities of the issuer or any of its subsidiaries or associates at any 
time by the Commission; 
If any refusal happened in the above cases, it will create negative impression on the issuer. 
 
Management Perception:  
Such cases did not happen for our company, any of our subsidiaries or associates.  
 
 
 
ii) External risk factors may include, among others: 
 
1. Interest Rate Risks: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that Company faces for paying more interest on loan taken due to unfavorable movement 
in the interest rates for Government's monetary policy changes, Furthermore, increased demand for loans is another 
reason for hike in interest rates. Such interest rates rise affect Companies mostly if they have loans of floating interest 
rate or Companies investing in debt securities. 
 
Management Perception: 
¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ƛǎ ǘƻ ƳŀƴŀƎŜ ƛǘǎ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ǊŀǘŜ Ǌƛǎƪ ǳǎƛƴƎ ŀ ƳƛȄ ƻŦ ŦƛȄŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǾŀǊƛŀōƭŜ ǊŀǘŜ ŘŜōǘΣ ǘŀƪƛƴƎ ŀŘǾŀƴǘŀƎŜ 
of the changes in the market rates, issuing long term floating rated bond within reasonable rate range. Guidance 
received from GHAIL Group Treasury division with respect to forecasting of interest rates has been of immense value in 
management of this interest risk exposure. 
 
2. Exchange Rate Risk: 
Exchange rate risk occurs due to unfavorable changes in exchange rates. For say if Company import equipment/raw 
materials from abroad and the foreign currency value appreciates then it has to pay more now than what it was 
supposed to pay before. On the other hand, if foreign currency value depreciates of market where it sells its product 
then the company will lose its competitive edge in foreign market.  
 
Management Perception:  
Along with the changing eating habits of the urban people the demand of frozen/ready to eat foods are increased 
rapidly which, was previously meeting by importing from abroad. So, GHAIL is almost busy to meet the local demand 
and recently it is selling all (100%) of its products to local market only.  
  
3. Industry Risk:  
Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition from foreign and domestic sources leading to lower prices, 
revenues, profit margin, and market share which could have an adverse impact on the business, financial condition 
and results of operation.  
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Management Perception: 
Agro industry in Bangladesh is an emerging sector with vast local demand for its different product lines. Locally 
produced frozen products now play a significant role in this sector, which has been dominated by imports in the past. 
The Company has established its brand name in Frozen Food market with its quality products, range of products and 
customer services. However, to develop an infrastructure, both public and private sector participation is required. This 
ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƻŎŀƭ Ǉƻƛƴǘ ƻŦ DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘΩǎ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŜȄǇŀƴǎƛƻƴ ǇƭŀƴǎΦ   
 
4. Market related Risk:  
Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the Company. 
Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the product or service which would harm the performance of the 
Company.   
 

Management Perception: 
Market for Ready to Cook frozen foods in Bangladesh is growing at an exponential rate with growth of urbanization 
and incremental income level of consumers along with their preference to convenience. In spite of high growth of this 
market, there is scarcity of investment in this sector which creates a huge demand-supply gap resulting in very 
expensive imports. International market for Ready to Cook frozen food sector is already matured and is growing 
further at a high rate. In Bangladesh market, Golden Harvest has made a rapid penetration and has captured the 
leading position with its unique branding and positioning strategy taking opportunity of this fast-growing market.  
 
5. Vulnerabilities from IT Related Risks: 
Information technology risk, IT risk, IT-related risk, or Cyber Risk is any risk related to information technology. While 
information has long been appreciated as a valuable and important asset, the rise of the knowledge economy and the 
Digital Revolution has led to organizations becoming increasingly dependent on information, information processing 
and especially IT. Various events or incidents that compromise IT in some way can therefore cause adverse impacts on 
the organization's business processes or mission, ranging from inconsequential to catastrophic in scale. 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL relies on Information Technology to obtain a competitive advantage, whilst recognizing the need for stringent 
internal controls and IT governance policies. The GHAIL Group's IT governance structures and policies are followed by 
GHAIL having a disaster recovery readiness in all business systems. Dedicated professionals and use of appropriate 
software ensure continuity of business operations and safeguard from IT related risks including maintaining up to date 
virus definition files & firewalls, daily, weekly & monthly "on site" & "offsite" data backups, enable cloud storage for all 
users, conduct quarterly internal audits by IT department based on a checklist and setting up of early warning 
mechanism to mitigate possible infrastructure failures. 
 
6. Potential or existing government regulation: 
The Company operates primarily under Companies Act 1994, Taxation policy adopted by NBR, and rules adopted by 
other regulatory organizations. Any abrupt changes of the policies formed by those bodies will impact the business of 
Company adversely. Unless adverse policies are taken, which may materially affect the industry as a whole; the 
business of the Company will not be affected. 
 

Management Perception: 
Agro industry in Bangladesh is an emerging sector with considerable local demand for different product lines. It is also 
an import substitute industry and with changes of living standards of people, demand for such products will increase. 
Therefore, it is highly unlikely that the Government will initiate any measure that may have adverse impact on the 
growth of the industry. However, the company management is concerned very much to co-opt any future regulatory 
requirements. 
 
7. Potential Changes in Global and National Policies: 
 The performance of the Company may be affected by the political and economical instability both in Bangladesh and 
worldwide. Any instance of political turmoil and disturbance in the country may adversely affect the economy in 
general. 
 
Management Perception: 
Since inception, the company has engaged its efforts to comply with all regulatory requirements in respect of day-to-
day business activities, production, distribution and quality control measures. Total business activities of the company 
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run on the latest state of the art technology and so far, comply with the quality control requirements of home and 
abroad. It is expected that demand for products of the company will increase and the Govt. of Bangladesh will create 
friendly environment for such export oriented and import substituting industries. The Company is always aware of 
adopting all types of measures to comply with any change in national or global policies to keep its operations smooth. 
 
8. Economic Risks: 
Our performance and growth are dependent on the health of the Bangladesh economy. The economy could be 
adversely affected by various factors such as political or regulatory action, including adverse changes in liberalization 
policies, social disturbances, terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war, natural calamities, commodity and 
energy prices and various other factors. Any significant changes may adversely affect our business and financials. 
 
Management Perception: 
Bangladesh economy is booming for last few years. Consistent industrial growth along with increased agricultural 
production has made the Per Capita Income higher than that of recent years. In addition, favorable government 
policies and industry friendly policies by other regulatory bodies have proved to be congenial to the economy of the 
country. 
 
9. Political Risks: 
Bangladesh is prone to serious unrest in the political condition which produces Hartal, RoadBlock and many other 
barriers to the business. This could also propel the cost of the product upwards. 
 
Management Perception: 
During the last forty years of post-independence period, Bangladesh has gone through a variety of political situations. 
But presently, a sound political atmosphere is prevailing in the country. Both the ruling and opposition parties are 
committed to the betterment of the country. Last democratic national assembly election and local council polls are 
instances of peaceful political situation in Bangladesh. 
 
10. Statury clearances and approvals those are yet to be reeived by the issuer: 
If there is any statutory approval which is pending or not received yet may hamper the business operation of the 
issuer. 
 
Management Perception: 
The company has received all the statutory clearance and approvals for smooth operation of business. Renewal and 
updates are continuous process and concern department of issuer is well aware of these procedures. So, there is 
limited degree of risk associated in these regards.  
 
11. Competitive condition of the business: 
Competition between businesses is a common phenomenon in every business sector which may badly affect the 
issuer including reduction of profit therefore EPS. 
 
 
Management Perception: 
GHAIL is one of the early entrances in frozen or ready to eat foods processing sector and become a market leader. 
Which always help to get competitive advantages from market. Moreover, by providing good qualitiful and hygienic 
products it has established customers loyality, helping the issuer to overcome the rival situation.  
 
12. Complementary and supplementary products or services which may have an impact on business of the issuer: 
Complementary and supplementary products may have a positive or negative impact on its sales revenue resulting 
growth or decline of its business.    
  
Management Perception: 
The issuer is always aware about market of its products as well as complementary products. GHAIL has an expert team 
of research and developments, if there is any such type of chance the issuer is always has a capacity to renovate, 
extend or redesign to take the advantages of situation so risk of opportunity loss is very low.  
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DATE & TIME OF OPENING AND CLOSING OF SUBSCRIPTION [see rule-8(d)] 
 
 

Subscription opens for the rights shares offer on December 08, 2019 and subscription closes for the rights shares 
offer on December 30, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PURPOSE OF RAISING FUND THROUGH RIGHTS ISSUE [see rule-8(e)] 

 
The purpose of issuance of Rights Share is to raise further paid up capital for expansion of existing production and 
distribution channels and to pay off bank loan of the Company.    
  
  
 
 
 
 
 

Sd/- 
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani  

Managing Director 

 Sd/- 
Rojina Akhter FCA 

Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 (FIVE) YEARS INFORMATION REGARDING 
AGM HELD AND DIVIDEND DECLARED BY THE COMPANY 

 

Financial Year AGM Title 
Date of AGM Held and 

Dividend Declared 

Rate of Dividend 

Stock Cash 

2013-2014 10th AGM 15.12.2014 - 10% 

2014-2015 11th AGM 15.12.2015 10%  - 

2015-2016 12th AGM 29.12.2016 10% - 

2016-2017 13th AGM 21.12.2017 10% - 

2017-2018 14th AGM 19.12.2018 10%  - 
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Market for products:  
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd is a market leader in the processed / frozen food industry. Because of the expansion of metro 
city and modern life style people are preferring ready foods more resulting the sales revenue of the company increasing gradually. 
The products are marketed under the brand name of Golden Harvest.         
 

Products:  
The company is currently producing 81 varieties of premium quality frozen food products of snacks, ready to eat foods, finger 
foods like, chicken nuggets, chicken sausages, fish fingers, French fries, spring rolls, paratha, samosa etc under the brand name 
άGolden Harvestέ generating almost 41% of revenue. 
 
Subsidiaries: Two subsidiaries of GHAIL are Golden Harvest Icecream Ltd and Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd marketing their products 
ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ōǊŀƴŘ ƴŀƳŜ ƻŦ Ψ.ƭƻƻǇΩ ŀƴŘ ΨIŀǇǇȅ /ƻǿΩ ǊŜǎǇŜŎǘƛǾŜƭȅΦ 
 

Products:  
i) 77 various variants of ice cream including sticks, cups, cones, calippo, sorbets, tubs, cakes and many more under the brand 
ƴŀƳŜ άōƭƻƻǇέ ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ near about 58% of revenue.  

 
ii) The Dairy unit of Golden Harvest has been producing high quality milk and milk-based products like Liquid Milk, Ghee, Yogurt, 
tŀƴŜŜǊΣ aƻȊȊŀǊŜƭƭŀ ŎƘŜŜǎŜΣ ŜǘŎ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ōǊŀƴŘ ƴŀƳŜ άIŀǇǇȅ /ƻǿέ ƎŜƴŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ nearly 1.3% of revenue.  

 
Associate: DI!L[ Ƙŀǎ ƻƴŜ ŀǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜ DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘ v{w [ǘŘ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜƛǊ ǇǊƻŘǳŎǘǎ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ōǊŀƴŘ ƴŀƳŜ ΨнDhΩΦ 
 

Products: 
½ƛƴƎȅ ōǳǊƎŜǊΣ ŦǊƛŜŘ ŎƘƛŎƪŜƴΣ ƳƛƭƪǎƘŀƪŜΣ ǘǿƛǎǘȅ ǿǊŀǇΣ ŀƴŘ Ƴŀƴȅ ƳƻǊŜ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ōǊŀƴŘ ƴŀƳŜ άнDhέ.  
 
 

EQUITY STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY 
  

 

Sl. No. Particulars 
As on September 30, 2018 

Amount (BDT) 

A 

Paid-up Capital 1,090,089,000 

Share Premium 137,677,054 
Revaluation Reserve 282,160,006 

Retained earnings 992,597,555 

¢ƻǘŀƭ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ  2,502,523,615 

B Total Number of Shares (after considering 10% stock dividend) 119,909,790 

C Equity Based Value per share with revaluation reserve 20.87 
D Equity Based Value per share without revaluation reserve 18.52 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE PREVIOUS YEARS  
      

(Amount in BDT) 

Particulars 
September  June  June  June  June  June  

30, 2018 30, 2018 30, 2017 30, 2016 30, 2015 30, 2014 
Share Capital     1,090,089,000  1,090,089,000 990,990,000 900,900,000 819,000,000 819,000,000 

Share premium         137,677,054  137677054 236,776,054 326,866,054 408,766,054 408,766,054 
Revaluation Surplus         282,160,006  283,316,706 278,351,144 283,331,524 303,525,145 288,465,361 

Retained earnings         992,597,555  920,797,692 693,397,688 499,493,608 334,401,831 371,891,644 
Total {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊΩǎ Equity 2,502,523,615 2,431,880,452 2,199,514,886 2,010,591,186 1,865,693,030 1,888,123,059 

Net Profit after Tax 70,208,466 222,872,646 187,045,836 178,767,995 85,936,125 97,174,679 
Number of Shares 109,008,900 109,008,900 99,099,000 90,090,000 81,900,000 81,900,000 

Face Value 10 10 10 10 10 10 

NAV Per Share 22.96 22.31 22.20 22.32 22.78 23.05 
EPS 0.64 2.04 1.72 1.64 0.79 0.89 

Dividend 
Cash: N/A Cash: Nil Cash: Nil Cash: Nil Cash: Nill Cash: 10% 
Stock: N/A Stock: 10% Stock: 10% Stock: 10% Stock: 10% Stock: Nil 

Cash flow from Operating activities 193,873,572 469,562,728 344,320,122 444,008,577 193,549,798 200,922,890 
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share (NOCFPS) 1.78 4.31 3.16 4.07 1.78 1.84 

* As per Audited Financial Statements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRODUCT MANUFACTURED BY THE COMPANY [see rule-8(f)] 
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IF THE ISSUE PRICE OF RIGHTS SHARE IS HIGHER THAN THE PAR VALUE THEREOF, JUSTIFICATION OF THE PREMIUM 

SHOULD BE STATED WITH REFERENCE TO- [see rule-8(g)] 
 

The issue price of rights share is not higher than the par value and the rights issue price at Tk.10.00 each per share is 
justified as per the guidelines of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) as given in the table 
below:  
 

Valuation Methods 
Offer Price 

(Taka) 

Method (i) 
Net Asset Value per Share (with Revaluation) 20.87 

Net Asset Value per Share (without Revaluation) 18.52 

Method (ii) Historical Earnings Based Value per Share 16.04 
Method (iii) Average Market Price per Share 31.87 
 

 

Method (i): Net Assets Value per share  
 

Particulars 
As on September 30, 2018 

Amount (BDT) 

A 

Non-Current Assets:  
 

 Property, plant and equipment  3,703,352,679 
 Leased assets  111,663,663 

 Intangible assets  85,896,445 

 Biological assets  79,921,197 

 Capital work in progress  414,331,529 

 Investment in associates  0 
Total Non-Current Assets 4,395,165,513 

Current Assets 
 

 Inventories  650,176,671 

 Advances, deposits and prepayments  503,351,316 

 Trade & other receivables  1,175,052,476 
 Cash and cash equivalents  90,427,808 

Total Current Assets 2,419,008,271 

Total Assets 6,814,173,784 

B 

Non-Current Liabilities 
 

Long term loans  2,040,268,282 

Deferred tax liability 232,000,366 
Lease obligations 41,174,348 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,313,442,996 

Current Liabilities 
 

Accounts and other payables 132,820,463 

Accruals and provisions 280,410,016 
Short term loans 1,106,292,065 

Current portion of long-term loans 443,247,267 

Current portion of lease obligations 29,644,803 

Total Current Liabilities 1,992,414,614 

Total Liabilities 4,305,857,610 
C=(A-B) Net Asset with non-controling interest 2,508,316,174 

D Non-controling Interest  5,792,559 

E=(C-D) Net Asset without non-controling interest 2,502,523,615 

F Total Number of Ordinary Share Outstanding (after considering 10% stock dividend) 119,909,790 

G=(E/F) Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share 20.87 
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NAV is also equivalent to the Equity Based Value per share which is depicted below: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars 
As on September 30, 2018 

Amount (BDT) 

A 

Paid-up Capital 1,090,089,000 

Share Premium 137,677,054 

Revaluation Reserve 282,160,006 

Retained earnings 992,597,555 

¢ƻǘŀƭ {ƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ 9ǉǳƛǘȅ  2,502,523,615 
B Total Number of Shares (after considering 10% stock dividend) 119,909,790 

C Equity Based Value per share with revaluation reserve 20.87 

D Equity Based Value per share without revaluation reserve 18.52 
 

Method (ii): Historical Earnings Based Value per Share 
 

Year  No. of Share  
 Net Profit 
after tax  

Weight of 
No. of 
Shares 

 Weight 
Average of Net 
Profit After Tax  

30-Sep-18 109,008,900 70,208,466 0.19090648          13,403,251  

30-Jun-18 109,008,900 222,872,646 0.19090648          42,547,833  

30-Jun-17 99,099,000 187,045,836 0.17355135          32,462,057  

30-Jun-16 90,090,000 178,767,995 0.15777395          28,204,933  

30-Jun-15 81,900,000 85,936,125 0.14343087          12,325,893  
30-Jun-14 81,900,000 97,174,679 0.14343087          13,937,848  

  571,006,800 842,005,747 1        142,881,816  

Total Number of Share  (after considering 10% stock dividend)        119,909,790  

Weighted Average Earnings per Share (EPS)                       1.19  

Market PE (July, 2019)  13.46  
Earnings Based Value per Share   16.04  

 
Method (iii): Average Market Price per Share 

                              (Amount in BDT) 

Date 
Market Performance 

Face Value Price 

Market price per shares as on 30 September 2019 10 31.00 

Market price per shares as on 29 August 2019 10 29.00 

Market price per shares as on 31 July 2019 10 30.10 

Market price per shares as on 30 June 2019 10 33.70 

Market price per shares as on 30 May 2019 10 34.10 

Market price per shares as on 30 April 2019 10 33.30 

Average Market Price per Share 10 31.87 
 (Source: DSE)        
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CASH FLOWS STATEMENT, PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT, BALANCE SHEET, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND NOTES TO THE 

ACCOUNTS OF THE ISSUER [see rule-8(h)] 
 

LƴŘŜǇŜƴŘŜƴǘ !ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǇƻǊǘ 
to 

The Shareholders of Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
 

²Ŝ ƘŀǾŜ ŀǳŘƛǘŜŘ ǘƘŜ ŀŎŎƻƳǇŀƴȅƛƴƎ ŎƻƴǎƻƭƛŘŀǘŜŘ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘ !ƎǊƻ LƴŘǳǎǘǊƛŜǎ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘ όάǘƘŜ 
cƻƳǇŀƴȅέύ ǿƘƛŎƘ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎŜ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǉƻǎƛǘƛƻƴ ŀǎ ŀǘ ол {ŜǇǘŜƳōŜǊ нлму ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ 
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows and also 
consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary which comprise consolidated statement of 
financial position as at 30 September 2018 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the period then 
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.  
    

aŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘΩǎ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

!ǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ wŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ 
   
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ǇǊƻŎŜŘǳǊŜǎ ǎŜƭŜŎǘŜŘ ŘŜǇŜƴŘ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊΩǎ ƧǳŘƎƳŜƴǘΣ ƛƴŎƭǳŘƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǌƛǎƪǎ ƻŦ 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
ŀǎǎŜǎǎƳŜƴǘǎΣ ǘƘŜ ŀǳŘƛǘƻǊ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭ ǊŜƭŜǾŀƴǘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŦŀƛǊ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜ ƻŦ ŜȄǇǊŜǎǎƛƴƎ ŀƴ ƻǇƛƴƛƻƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ ŜŦŦŜŎǘƛǾŜƴŜǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŜƴǘƛǘȅΩǎ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀƭ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭΦ !ƴ ŀǳŘƛǘ ŀƭǎƻ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financial statements of the 
company give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the group and the separate financial 
position of the company as at 30 September 2018, and of its consolidated  and separate financial performance and its 
consolidated  and separate cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs)  and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other 
applicable laws and regulations. 
 

We also report that: 
 

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company and its 
subsidiary so far as it appeared from our examination of these books; 

c) the consolidated statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income dealt with 
by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and 

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business.   
 

 
 Sd/- 
Dated: Dhaka; 
27 December, 2018   

S. F. Ahmed & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 
 

as at 30 September 2018 
 

      
  Notes 

Amount in BDT 
 

  
30-Sep-18 30-Jun-18 

 
ASSETS 

     
Non-current assets 

 
4,395,165,513 4,401,534,806 

 
Property, plant and equipment 5 3,703,352,679 3,747,437,696 

 
Leased assets 6 111,663,663 85,121,706 

 
Intangible assets 7 85,896,445 87,126,754 

 
Biological assets 8 79,921,197 80,473,506 

 
Capital work in progress 9 414,331,529 401,375,144 

 
Investment in associates 11 - - 

 
      Current assets 

 
2,419,008,271 2,199,715,005 

 
Inventories 12 650,176,671 593,936,105 

 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13 503,351,316 425,313,225 

 
Trade & other receivables 14 1,175,052,476 1,165,937,448 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 15 90,427,808 14,528,227 

 
      TOTAL ASSETS 

 
6,814,173,784 6,601,249,811 

 
      EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    
      Shareholders' equity 

 
2,502,523,615 2,431,880,461 

 
Share capital 16 1,090,089,000 1,090,089,000 

 
Share premium 17 137,677,054 137,677,054 

 
Revaluation surplus 18 282,160,006 283,316,706 

 
Retained earnings 19 992,597,555 920,797,701 

 
      Non controlling interest 20 5,792,559 6,342,044 

 
Total equity 

 
2,508,316,174 2,438,222,505 

 
      Non-current liabilities 

 
2,313,442,996 2,293,049,488 

 
Long term loans 21 2,040,268,282 2,038,263,200 

 
Deferred tax liability 22 232,000,366 223,584,535 

 
Lease obligations 23 41,174,348 31,201,753 

 
      Current liabilities 

 
1,992,414,614 1,869,977,818 

 
Accounts and other payables 24 132,820,463 120,132,335 

 
Accruals and provisions 25 280,410,016 260,669,841 

 
Short term loans 26 1,106,292,065 1,043,722,703 

 
Current portion of long term loans 21 443,247,267 420,462,647 

 
Current portion of lease obligations 23 29,644,803 24,990,293 

 
      TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 
6,814,173,784 6,601,249,811 

 
      Net asset value per share 37 22.96 22.31 

 
            The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction 

therewith.  

       

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 

 

    
Sd/- 

 
Dated, Dhaka; 

  
S. F. Ahmed & Co. 

27 December 2018 
  

Chartered Accountants 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
Statement of Financial Position 

as at 30 September 2018 
      
  Notes 

Amount in BDT 
 

  
30-Sep-18 30-Jun-18 

 
ASSETS 

     
Non-current assets 

 
2,689,636,898 2,651,111,219 

 
Property, plant and equipment 5A 1,327,358,177 1,342,485,155 

 
Leased assets 6A 33,625,570 34,487,764 

 
Intangible assets 7A 51,807,557 52,459,103 

 
Capital work in progress 9A 363,760,632 350,804,247 

 
Investment in subsidiary companies 10 913,084,962 870,874,950 

 
Investment in associates 11 - - 

 
      Current assets 

 
1,583,131,335 1,495,549,980 

 
Inventories 12A 292,257,745 230,713,418 

 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13A 268,970,721 268,305,361 

 
Trade & other receivables 14A 1,006,878,785 994,098,085 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 15A 15,024,085 2,433,116 

 
      TOTAL ASSETS 

 
4,272,768,233 4,146,661,199 

 
      EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    
      Shareholders' equity 

 
2,502,523,615 2,431,880,461 

 
Share capital 16 1,090,089,000 1,090,089,000 

 
Share premium 17 137,677,054 137,677,054 

 
Revaluation surplus 18A 282,160,006 283,316,706 

 
Retained earnings 19A 992,597,555 920,797,701 

 
      Total equity 

 
2,502,523,615 2,431,880,461 

 
      Non-current liabilities 

 
910,413,848 907,976,180 

 
Long term loans 21A 804,516,393 800,697,754 

 
Deferred tax liability 22A 101,460,717 100,609,367 

 
Lease obligations 23A 4,436,738 6,669,059 

 
      Current liabilities 

 
859,830,770 806,804,558 

 
Account and other payables 24A 44,074,373 43,772,824 

 
Accruals and provisions 25A 131,914,426 123,067,303 

 
Short term loans 26A 493,930,733 455,602,445 

 
Current portion of long term loans 21A 179,907,169 174,573,685 

 
Current portion of lease obligations 23A 10,004,069 9,788,301 

 
      TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

 
4,272,768,233 4,146,661,199 

 
            Net asset value per share 37A 22.96 22.31 

 
             

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 

 

    
Sd/- 

 
Dated, Dhaka; 

  
S. F. Ahmed & Co. 

27 December 2018 
  

Chartered Accountants 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 

For the period ended 30 September 2018 
           
     Notes  

Amount in BDT 
 

      
30-Sep-18 

 
30-Sep-17 

 
           Revenue 

   
27 

 
593,748,486 

 
471,015,750 

 
Cost of goods sold 

   
28 

 
(326,111,358) 

 
(246,477,464) 

 
Gross profit 

     
267,637,128 

 
224,538,286 

 
           Operating expenses 

    
(85,538,590) 

 
(65,660,172) 

 
Administrative expenses 

  
29 

 
(17,217,800) 

 
(14,038,978) 

 
Selling and distribution expenses 

 
30 

 
(68,320,790) 

 
(51,621,194) 

 
                      Fair value adjustments of biological assets 8 

 
3,391,620 

 
1,734,447 

 
Other operating income 

  
31 

 
14,941,304 

 
1,152,959 

 
           Profit from operations 

    
200,431,462 

 
161,765,520 

 
           Finance income 

   
32 

 
84,418 

 
52,565 

 
Finance expenses 

   
33 

 
(106,631,803) 

 
(67,677,515) 

 
           Net profit from operation 

    
93,884,077 

 
94,140,570 

 
           Contribution to WPPF 

     
(4,586,958) 

 
(4,574,266) 

 
           Income before share of non-consolidated companies  
 and income tax   

89,297,119 
 

89,566,304 
 

           Share of profit / (loss) from associates 
   

- 
 

- 
 

Net profit before tax 
    

89,297,119 
 

89,566,304 
 

Income tax expenses 
   

34 
 

(19,638,137) 
 

(24,069,032) 
 

Net profit after tax 
     

69,658,982 
 

65,497,272 
 

           Non controlling interest 20 
 

549,484 
 

602,013 
 

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders 
  

70,208,466 
 

66,099,285 
 

Other comprehensive income 
   

- 
 

- 
 

Total comprehensive income 
   

70,208,466 
 

66,099,285 
 

           Earnings per share(EPS) 
  

36 
 

0.64 
 

0.61 
 

           The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction 
therewith.  

            

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 

 

 

         
Sd/- 

 
Dated, Dhaka; 

       
S. F. Ahmed & Co. 

27 December 2018 
       

Chartered Accountants 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 

 For the period ended 30 September 2018 
           
     Notes  

Amount in BDT 
 

      
30-Sep-18 

 
30-Sep-17 

 
           Revenue 

   
27A 

 
214,076,903 

 
170,001,017 

 
Cost of goods sold 

   
28A 

 
(112,103,970) 

 
(86,867,497) 

 
Gross profit 

     
101,972,933 

 
83,133,520 

 
           Operating expenses 

     
(30,623,683) 

 
(22,208,824) 

 
Administrative expenses 

  
29A 

 
(10,184,373) 

 
(8,671,887) 

 
Selling and distribution expenses 

 
30A 

 
(20,439,310) 

 
(13,536,937) 

 
           Other operating income 

  
31A 

 
11,546,679 

 
1,152,959 

 
           Profit from operations 

    
82,895,929 

 
62,077,655 

 
Finance income 

   
32A 

 
40,430 

 
27,837 

 
Finance expenses 

   
33A 

 
(46,910,063) 

 
(27,998,544) 

 
Net profit from operations 

    
36,026,296 

 
34,106,948 

 
Contribution to WPPF 

     
(1,714,852) 

 
(1,623,491) 

 
           Income before share of non-consolidated companies  
 and income tax   

34,311,444 
 

32,483,457 
 

           Share of profit from subsidiary 
  

35 
 

42,081,074 
 

39,758,458 
 

Share of profit / (loss) from associates 
   

- 
 

- 
 

Net profit before tax 
    

76,392,518 
 

72,241,916 
 

Income tax expenses 
   

34A 
 

(6,184,052) 
 

(6,142,631) 
 

Net profit after tax 
     

70,208,466 
 

66,099,285 
 

           Profit after tax attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the 
 Company   

70,208,466 
 

66,099,285 
 

           Other comprehensive income 
   

- 
 

- 
 

Total comprehensive income 
   

70,208,466 
 

66,099,285 
 

           Earnings per share (EPS) 
  

36A 
 

0.64 
 

0.61 
 

  

           The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction 
therewith.  

 

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 

 

 

           

           
         

Sd/- 
 

Dated, Dhaka; 
       

S. F. Ahmed & Co. 
27 December 2018 

       
Chartered Accountants 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited  
 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity  

 For the period ended 30 September 2018  
                        

           
 Amount in BDT  

Particulars    Share capital  
 Share  

premium  
 Revaluation 

surplus  
 Retained 
earnings  

 NCI   Total  

                        Balance as at 01.07.2017          990,990,000        236,776,054        278,351,144        693,397,688        7,506,750       2,207,021,636  
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation surplus                       -                        -                        -                451,699                   -                 451,699  
Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus                        -                        -            (1,199,986)          1,199,986                   -                         -    
Net profit after tax                        -                        -                        -           66,099,285                   -             66,099,285  
Share of profit from subsidiary                        -                        -                        -                        -           (377,014)             (377,014) 
Share of deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 
 Surplus          

                -    
                     -    

Balance as at 30.09.2017 
 

     990,990,000      236,776,054      277,151,158      761,148,658       7,129,736    2,273,195,606  

            Balance as at 01.07.2018       1,090,089,000        137,677,054        283,316,706        920,797,701        6,342,044       2,438,222,505  
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation surplus                       -                        -                        -                434,688                   -                 434,688  
Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus                        -                        -            (1,156,700)          1,156,700                   -                         -    
Net profit after tax                        -                        -                        -           70,208,466                   -             70,208,466  
Share of profit from subsidiary                        -                        -                        -             (549,484)             (549,484) 
Share of deferred tax adjustment on revaluation  
Surplus          

                (1) 
                     (1) 

Balance as at 30.09.2018 
 

  1,090,089,000      137,677,054      282,160,006      992,597,555       5,792,559    2,508,316,174  

                                                             
 

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
 Statement of Changes in Equity  

 For the period ended 30 September 2018  

           
 Amount in BDT  

Particulars    Share capital  
 Share 

 premium  
 Revaluation  

surplus  
 Retained 
earnings  

   NCI   Total  

                        Balance as at 01.07.2017          990,990,000  
 

     236,776,054  
 

     278,351,144  
 

     693,397,688  
 

                -         2,199,514,886  
Deferred tax adjustment on 
revaluation surplus 

                      -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

           451,699  
 

                -                 451,699  

Depreciation adjustment on 
revaluation surplus  

                      -    
 

                   -    
 

       (1,199,986) 
 

        1,199,986  
 

                -                         -    

Net profit after tax                        -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

      66,099,285  
 

                -             66,099,285  

Balance as at 30.09.2017 
 

     990,990,000      236,776,054      277,151,158      761,148,658                    -      2,266,065,870  

            Balance as at 01.07.2018       1,090,089,000  
 

     137,677,054  
 

     283,316,706  
 

     920,797,701  
 

                -         2,431,880,461  
Deferred tax adjustment on 
revaluation surplus 

                      -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

           434,688  
 

                -                 434,688  

Depreciation adjustment on 
revaluation surplus  

                      -    
 

                   -    
 

       (1,156,700) 
 

        1,156,700  
 

                -                         -    

Net profit after tax                        -    
 

                   -    
 

                   -    
 

      70,208,466  
 

                -             70,208,466  
Share of profit from subsidiary                        -    

 
                   -    

 
                   -    

   
                -                         -    

Balance as at 30.09.2018 
 

  1,090,089,000      137,677,054      282,160,006      992,597,555                    -      2,502,523,615  

                                                 

 
Sd/- 

   
Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

For the period ended 30 September 2018 
           
    Note  

Amount in BDT 
 

     
30-Sep-18 

 
30-Sep-17 

 
           Cash flows from operating activities 

        
Collections from customers and others 

    
603,903,285 

 
472,619,561 

 
Payments for operating costs & other expenses 

    
(396,730,989) 

 
(402,539,534) 

 
Tax paid 

      
(13,298,724) 

 
1,477,848 

 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

 
39 

 
193,873,572 

 
71,557,875 

 
           Cash flows from investing activities 

        
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 

    
(2,968,660) 

 
(12,811,891) 

 
Acquisitions of intangible assets 

    
- 

 
(303,000) 

 
Acquisitions / proceed from Biological assets 

    
3,943,929 

 
(130,000) 

 
Capital work in progress 

     
(12,956,385) 

 
(88,397,296) 

 
Advance against assets purchase 

    
(32,484,000) 

 
- 

 
Advance against flat purchase 

    
(32,631,853) 

 
- 

 
Advance finance to contract farmers & others 

    
(676,560) 

 
4,883,356 

 
Net cash used in investing activities 

    
(77,773,529) 

 
(96,758,831) 

 
           Cash flows from financing activities 

        
Payment against finance lease 

    
(14,042,895) 

 
(3,680,088) 

 
Borrowings from banks/financial institutions/Sister concern 

  
80,086,565 

 
65,658,868 

 
Finance cost paid 

      
(106,244,135) 

 
(67,677,515) 

 
Net cash provided by financing activities 

    
(40,200,464) 

 
(5,698,735) 

 
           Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 

    
75,899,582 

 
(30,899,691) 

 
           Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

  
14,528,227 

 
74,064,704 

 
           Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

   
90,427,809 

 
43,165,013 

 
           Net operating cash flow per share 

 
38 

  
1.78 

 
0.66 

 
                                                                                        

 

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  

 

 

                                                                  RIGH TS SHARE  OFFER DOCUMENT  
23 

 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the period ended 30 September 2018     

           
    Note  

Amount in BDT 
 

     
30-Sep-18 

 
30-Sep-17 

 
           Cash flows from operating activities 

        
Collections from customers and others 

    
215,795,439 

 
173,403,133 

 
Payments for operating costs & other expenses 

    
(180,821,718) 

 
(180,446,404) 

 
Tax paid 

      
(4,246,630) 

 
- 

 
Net cash generated from operating activities 

 
39A 

  
30,727,091 

 
(7,043,271) 

 
           Cash flows from investing activities 

        
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 

    
(336,175) 

 
(555,400) 

 
Acquisitions of intangible assets 

    
- 

 
(203,000) 

 
Capital work in progress 

     
(12,956,385) 

 
(50,986,353) 

 
Advance finance to contract farmers & others 

    
(676,560) 

 
4,883,356 

 
           Net cash used in investing activities 

    
(13,969,120) 

 
(46,861,397) 

 
           Cash flows from financing activities 

        
Payment against finance lease 

    
(2,016,553) 

 
(309,365) 

 
Borrowings from banks/financial institutions/Sister concern 

  
44,568,279 

 
82,765,890 

 
Finance cost paid 

      
(46,718,733) 

 
(27,998,543) 

 
           Net cash provided by financing activities 

    
(4,167,007) 

 
54,457,982 

 
           Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 

    
12,590,969 

 
553,314 

 
           Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

  
2,433,116 

 
13,428,350 

 
           Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

   
15,024,085 

 
13,981,664 

 
           Operating cash flow per share 

 
38A 

  
0.28 

 
(0.06) 

 
                                            

 

Sd/- 
   

Sd/- 

Chief Financial Officer 
   

Company Secretary 

 
      

 
      

Sd/- Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 

Director Director 
 

Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the period ended 30 September 2018 

 
1.            Reporting entity 

Group profile 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited was incorporated on August 10, 2004 as a Private Limited Group; 
vide Reg. No.-C-53850(515)/2004 under the Companies Act, 1994 and converted to public limited Group on 
30 June 2010. The Group has been listed to both the Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock 
Exchange Ltd. on 04 March 2013. The principal place of business and the head office of the Group are at 
Shanta Western Tower, Level # 5, Space Code # 502, 186, Gulshan, Tejgaon Link Road, Tejgaon Industrial 
Area, Dhaka-1208. The registered office and factory is located at Bokran, Monipur, Bobanipur, Gazipur Sadar, 
Gazipur. 
 
Nature of Business Activities 
The Company owns and operates the business of growing, procuring, purchasing, processing, packaging, 
warehousing, transporting, exporting, importing, distributing and selling agriculture based food, food 
products, vegetable processing. As per the object clause of the Memorandum the Company could also 
establish any industrial processing unit based on agro based raw materials products within the country and 
export the same or meet local demand. 
 

1.1 Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. An investor controls an 
investee when it is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has 
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited and 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited are the subsidiaries of the Group. 

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited (Previous name was Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing 
Limited) 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited formerly known as Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing Limited 
was incorporated on January 05, 2005, vide Reg. No.-C-55601(2285)/05 under the Companies Act, 1994. The 
objectives of the Group are to carry out the business, promote & establish factories and chain shop or shops; 
manufacture and manage food and food items, Dairy, Ice Cream, baby food, soft drink, mineral water, salt & 
iodised salt and allied products in Bangladesh and setting ventures and business is in connection therewith.  
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited acquired 99.9998% of shares of Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish 
Processing Limited by exchanging its own shares and acquired its 4,99,999 Ordinary Shares.   

 
DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘ {Ŝŀ CƻƻŘ ŀƴŘ CƛǎƘ tǊƻŎŜǎǎƛƴƎ [ƛƳƛǘŜŘΩ όDI{CCt[ύΣ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ ŎƻƴǾŜǊǘŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘ 
Ice Cream Limited (GHICL) on 16th May 2013 through the office of Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and 
Firms. 
 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited has incorporated on 18 February 2015, vide Reg. No.-C-121268/15 under the 
Companies Act, 1994 as a Private Limited Group. Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited acquired 75.00% of 
shares of Golden Harvest Dairy Limited. 
 
The objectives of the company will process Liquid Milk and milk based product like butter, cream, cheese, 
yogurt, etc. The project will not be for milk collection only it will support in meat processing and calf selling. 
 

1.2  Associates 
An associate is an entity in which Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. (GHAIL) has significant influence 
whereby the parties that have control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. 
GHAIL uses the equity method to account for its investment in associates and in its financial Statement in 
accordance with IAS-ну άLƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ !ǎǎƻŎƛŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ Wƻƛƴǘ ±ŜƴǘǳǊŜǎέΦ 
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Golden Harvest QSR Limited 
Golden Harvest QSR Limited has incorporated 04 February 2015; vide Reg. No.-C-128718/2016 under the 
Companies Act, 1994 as a Private Limited Company. Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited acquired 
30.00% of shares of Golden Harvest QSR Limited. Investment is initially recognized at cost and subsequently 
measured at equity method. 
 
Golden Harvest QSR Limited launches its business with the brand name 2GO. It is a quick service compact 
fast food joint. It will provide delicious hot food at an affordable price in very short service time. People can 
pick the order on the go for their home or have a quick bite inside the shop. The offerings will give a good 
ǾŀƭǳŜ ŦƻǊ ǘƘŜ ŎƻƴǎǳƳŜǊΩǎ ƳƻƴŜȅΦ 
 

1.3 Date of Authorization for issue 
The financial statements of Golden Harvest Agro industries Ltd. for the period ended 30 September 2018 
were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 27 December 2018.  
 

1.4 Reporting Period 
The reporting period of the Group covers first quarter from 1st July 2018 to 30th September 2018. 
 

2.             Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
2.1 Statement on Compliance with Local Laws 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 
1994, Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other relevant local laws as applicable. 
 

2.2 Statement on Compliance of Financial Reporting Standards 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 

2.3          Basis of Measurement of Elements of Financial Statements 
Measurement is the process of determining the monetary amounts at which the elements of the financial 
statements are to be recognized and carried in the statement of financial position and profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income. The measurement basis adopted by Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited is 
historical cost except for land, building and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amount, 
inventories are at the lower of cost and net realizable value and marketable securities are at market value. 
Under the historical cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value 
of the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the 
amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation, or in some circumstances (for example, income 
taxes), at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal 
course of business. 

 
2.4          Basis of Consolidation  

Group accounts are prepared on the basis that the parent and subsidiaries are a single entity as per IFRS-10 
άCƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎέΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ǊŜŦƭŜŎǘǎ ǘƘŜ ŜŎƻƴƻƳƛŎ ǎǳōǎǘŀƴŎŜǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƎǊƻǳǇ ŀǊǊŀƴƎŜƳŜƴǘΦ  
 
The group financial statements include the financial statements of GHAIL and subsidiaries that it controls. 
GHAIL prepares financial statements using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances. Consolidation of an investee shall begin from the date the investor obtains control 
of the investee and cease when the investor loses control of the investee. 
 
GHAIL presents non-controlling interests in the statement of financial position within equity, separately from 
the equity of the owners of GHAIL. Changes in GHAIL ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in 
losing control of the subsidiary are equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners). 
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              Consolidation procedures           
   

ü combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with 
those of its subsidiaries. 

ü ƻŦŦǎŜǘ όŜƭƛƳƛƴŀǘŜύ ǘƘŜ ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘΩǎ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƳŜƴǘ ƛƴ ŜŀŎƘ ǎǳōǎƛŘƛŀǊȅ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ǇŀǊŜƴǘΩǎ 
portion of equity of each subsidiary.  

ü eliminate in full intergroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intergroup transactions 
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intergroup 
losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the financial statements. 

 
Loss of control of Subsidiaries 

 
         If GHAIL loses control over its subsidiaries, GHAIL: 
 
ü derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former subsidiary from the statement of financial 

position. 
ü recognises any investment retained in the former subsidiary and subsequently accounts for it and for 

any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with relevant IFRSs.  
ü recognises the gain or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling 

interest. 
 

Equity method           
Under the equity method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate is recognised at cost, and the 
ŎŀǊǊȅƛƴƎ ŀƳƻǳƴǘ ƛǎ ƛƴŎǊŜŀǎŜŘ ƻǊ ŘŜŎǊŜŀǎŜŘ ǘƻ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ 
ƛƴǾŜǎǘŜŜ ŀŦǘŜǊ ǘƘŜ ŘŀǘŜ ƻŦ ŀŎǉǳƛǎƛǘƛƻƴΦ ¢ƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘŜŜΩǎ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ƻǊ ƭƻǎǎ ƛǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ 
ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ Ǉrofit or loss. If the carrying amount of the investment in the associate has been reduced to zero, 
no further losses are recognized by the group. The parent is only required to make a provision for any 
additional losses incurred by the associate to the extent that the parent has a legal or constructive obligation 
to make good these amounts. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for a change in the 
ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ ǇǊƻǇƻǊǘƛƻƴŀǘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘŜŜ ŀǊƛǎƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘŜŜΩǎ ƻǘƘer comprehensive 
income. Such changes include those arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment and from 
ŦƻǊŜƛƎƴ ŜȄŎƘŀƴƎŜ ǘǊŀƴǎƭŀǘƛƻƴ ŘƛŦŦŜǊŜƴŎŜǎΦ ¢ƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘƻǎŜ ŎƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǾŜǎǘƻǊΩǎ 
other comprehensive income. 
 
Investment in subsidiaries and associates in GHAIL separate financial statements 
 
When GHAIL prepares separate financial statements, the GHAIL using the equity method for investment in 
subsidiaries and associates: 

 
2.5 Going Concern 

At each quarter end management of the Group makes assessment of going concern as required by IAS-1. The 
company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and has wide coverage 
of its liabilities. For this reason, the directors continue to adopt going concern assumption while preparing 
the financial statements. 
 

2.6 Accrual Basis of Accounting          
GHAIL prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, GHAIL recognizes items as assets, liabilities, equity, 
income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and 
recognition criteria for those elements in the Framework. 
 

2.7 Functional and presentation currency  
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¢ƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǇǊŜǇŀǊŜŘ ŀƴŘ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ .ŀƴƎƭŀŘŜǎƘ ¢ŀƪŀκ.5¢Σ ǿƘƛŎƘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 
functional currency. The Group earns its major revenues in BDT and all other incomes/expenses and 
transactions are in BDT and the competitive forces and regulations of Bangladesh determine the sale prices 
of its goods and services. Further, the entire funds from financing activities are generated in BDT. 
Foreign currency translation 
Foreign currency transactions are booked in the functional currency of the Group at the exchange rate ruling 
on the date of transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated into the 
functional currency at rates of exchange at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are included in the 
income statement. 
 

2.8          Materiality and Aggregation 
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of a dissimilar 
nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial. 
 

2.9  Offsetting           
      

GHAIL does not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or permitted by an IFRS. 
 

2.10 Comparative Information and Rearrangement thereof 
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the previous period for all numerical information 
in the financial Statements and also the narrative and descriptive information when it is relevant for 
understanding of the current period financial statements. Previous period figure has been re-arranged 
whenever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current periodΩǎ ǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ŀǎ ǇŜǊ L!{-8:" 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 

 
2.11 Use of Estimates and Judgments 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and for contingent 
assets and liabilities that require disclosure, during and at the date of the financial statements. 
 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised 
ŀƴŘ ƛƴ ŀƴȅ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘǎ ŀŦŦŜŎǘŜŘ ŀǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ ōȅ   L!{ уΥ ά!ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ tƻƭƛŎƛŜǎΣ /ƘŀƴƎŜǎ ƛƴ !ŎŎƻǳƴǘƛƴƎ 
9ǎǘƛƳŀǘŜǎ ŀƴŘ 9ǊǊƻǊǎΩΩ 
 
In particular, significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements include 
depreciation, amortization, impairment, net realizable value of inventories , accruals, taxation and provision. 
 
 

2.12 Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimate and Errors  
The effect of a change in an accounting estimate shall be recognised prospectively by including it in profit or 
loss in: 
 
(a) the period of the change, if the change affects that period only; or 
(b) the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. 
 

To the extent that a change in an accounting estimate gives rise to changes in assets and liabilities, or relates 
to an item of equity, it shall be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount of the related asset, liability or 
equity item in the period of the change. 
 
Changes in accounting policies and material prior period errors shall be retrospectively corrected in the first 
financial statements authorised for issue after their discovery by: 
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(a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or 
(b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, 

liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented. 
 

2.13 Structure, Content and Presentation of Financial Statements 
The Financial Statements of Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd., as at and for the period ended 30 
September 2018 comprise the Group and its Subsidiaries namely Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd., Golden 
IŀǊǾŜǎǘ 5ŀƛǊȅ [ǘŘΦ όǘƻƎŜǘƘŜǊ ǊŜŦŜǊǊŜŘ ǘƻ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ ΨDǊƻǳǇΩ ŀǎ ǇŜǊ LCw{-10 Financial Statements) and also Golden 
Harvest QSR as per IAS 28 Investment in Associate. Being the general purpose financial statements, the 
presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1: 
άtǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ CƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ {ǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎέΦ ! ŎƻƳǇƭŜǘŜ ǎŜǘ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ŎƻƳǇǊƛǎŜΥ 
 

i) Statement of financial position as at 30 September 2018; 
ii) Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Income for the period ended 30 September 2018; 
iii) Statement of changes in equity for the period  ended 30 September 2018; 
iv) Statement of cash flows for the period  ended 30 September 2018; and 
v) Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to 

the accounts for the period ended 30 September 2018. 
 
2.14 New accounting standards not yet adopted 
 

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 
September 2018 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Company. 
a) IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers 
to a customer, this notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard is 
mandatory for reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is currently assessing 
the implications and consequences of this standard. 
 
b) IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
This standard addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial 
liabilities and introduces new rules for hedge accounting. The standard is mandatory for reporting periods 
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is currently assessing the implications and 
consequences of this standard. 

 
3.            Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies set out below are consistent with those used in the previous period. Accounting 
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted 
by the Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited.  
 

3.1  Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Initial Recognition and Measurement 
An item shall be recognized as property, plant and equipment if, and only it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entry, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably IAS 
16. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost and subsequently land, buildings & civil 
constructions and plant & machineries are stated at fair value. The property, plant and equipment are 
presented at cost/fair value, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-
refundable taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing 
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the intended manner. 
The cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs 
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for long-term debt availed for the construction/Implementation of the PPE, if the recognition criteria are 
met. 
 

Subsequent costs 
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of an item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment 
ŀǊŜ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻŦƛǘ ŀƴŘ ƭƻǎǎ ŀŎŎƻǳƴǘ ŀǎ ȫwŜǇŀƛǊ ϧ aŀƛƴǘŜƴŀƴŎŜ ΨǿƘŜƴ ƛǘ ƛǎ ƛƴŎǳǊǊŜŘΦ 
 

Subsequent Measurement 
Property, Plant and equipment are disclosed at cost less accumulated depreciation consistently over periods. 
On 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2013. Land and Land Developments, Building and other 
constructions and Plant and Machinery have been revalued to reflect fair value (prevailing market price) 
ǘƘŜǊŜƻŦ ŦƻƭƭƻǿƛƴƎ ά/ǳǊǊŜƴǘ /ƻǎǘ aŜǘƘƻŘέΦ  

 
 Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or valuation of the assets after commissioning, over the period 
of their expected useful lives, in accordance with the provisions of IAS 16: Property Plant and Equipment. 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is charged 
on all Property, Plant and Equipment except land and land developments on reducing balance method at the 
following rates: 
 

Particular of Assets Rate of Depreciation 

Buildings and other constructions 2.5% 

Plant & Machinery 5% 

Office Equipment 10% 

Furniture and Fixtures 10% 

Vehicle 10% 

Freezer 10% 

 
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment of Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇ ƳŀŘŜ ǊŜǾŀƭǳŀǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ [ŀƴŘ ŀƴŘ [ŀƴŘ ŘŜǾŜƭopments, Buildings and Plant and Machinery 
as of 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2013 to reflect fair value thereof in terms of Depreciated 
current cost thereof. The revaluation has conducted by Ata Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants. 

 
The increase in the carrying amount of revalued assets is recognized in other comprehensive income under 
the head Revaluation Surplus. Other Fixed Assets were kept outside the scope of revaluation works. These 
are expected to be realizable at written down value (WDV) thereof mentioned in the statement of financial 
position of the Group. 
 

3.2  Capital work-in-progress 
Capital work in progress represents the cost incurred for acquisition and construction of items of property, 
plant and equipment that were not ready for use at the end of 30 September 2018 and these were stated at 
cost. In case of import components, capital work in progress is recognised when risks and rewards associated 
with such assets are transferred to the Group, i.e. at the time of shipment is confirmed by the supplier. 

 
3.3 Intangible Assets           
 Recognition          
     

The recognition of an item as an intangible asset requires GHAIL to demonstrate that the item meets the 
definition of an intangible asset and the recognition criteria. An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if, 
and only if: 
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ü it is probable that expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to 
GHAIL; and 

ü the cost of the item can be measured reliably.   
   
 Measurement           
         

An intangible asset is measure at cost less any accumulated amortisations and any accumulated impairment 
losses. Subsequent expenditures are likely to maintain the expected future economic benefits embodied in 
an existing intangible asset rather than meet the definition of an intangible asset and the recognition criteria. 
In addition, it is often difficult to attribute subsequent expenditure directly to a particular intangible asset 
rather than to the business as a whole. Therefore, expenditure incurred after the initial recognition of an 
acquired intangible asset or after completion of an internally generated intangible asset is usually recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred. This is because such expenditure cannot be distinguished from expenditure to 
develop the business as a whole. 

   
 Separately acquired intangibles         
             

The cost of a separately acquired intangible asset comprises:  
 
ü its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 

discounts and rebates;  
ü and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.       

       
 Internally generated intangible assets         
   
 The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of expenditure incurred from the date when 

the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. The cost of an internally generated intangible asset 
comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. 

         
  Research Phase 
           
 No intangible asset arising from research (or from the research phase of an internal project) is recognised. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it 
is incurred.  

          
  Development Phase  
     

 An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 
recognised in IAS-38, "Intangible assets".  

 
 ¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ƛƴǘŀƴƎƛōƭŜ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ƛnclude computer software development (ERP), Design, construction and 

development of products, Augmented Reality. 
             
 Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are 

not recognised as intangible assets. 
   
         

 Recognition of an expense 
 

 Income cases, expenditure are incurred to provide future economic benefits to an entity, but no intangible 
asset or other asset is acquired or created that can be recognised. Forexample, expenditure on research is 
recognised as an expense when it is incurred, except when it is acquired as part of a business combination. 
Other examples of expenditure that is recognised as an expense when it is incurred include: 
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ü expenditure on start-up activities ie start-up costs/ pre-operating cost. 
ü expenditure on training activities. 
ü expenditure on advertising and promotional activities.  
ü expenditure on relocating or reorganising part or all of an entity. 

 
Past expenses           
             
Expenditure on an intangible item that was initially recognised as an expense is not recognised as part of the 
cost of an intangible asset at a later date. 
   
Revaluation of intangibles           
             
The revaluation model requires an intangible asset shall be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value 
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated amortisation and any subsequent 
accumulated impairment losses. However, fair value shall be measured by reference to an active market. The 
revaluation model does not allow the revaluation of intangible assets that have not previously been 
recognised as assets; or the initial recognition of intangible assets at amounts other than cost. 
            
Amortization           
    
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be allocated on a systematic basis 
over its useful life. Amortisation begin when the asset is available for use, ie when it is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Amortisation 
cease at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is 
derecognised. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised. 
 
Amortisation of the intangible asset with a finite useful life is calculated using the reducing balance method 
to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as 
follows: 
 

Particulars Rate 

Software (at development stage) 0% 

Design, construction and development of products 10% 

Augmented Reality 10% 

 
Derecognition of intangible assets         
              
The carrying amount of an item of intangible assets is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
intangible assets is included as other income in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. When the 
revalued assets are disposed off, the respective revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.  

 
3.4  Biological Asset 
 

Recognition and measurement 
Biological asset is a living plant or animal. Biological asset are measured at fair value less costs to sell, both 
on initial recognition and each reporting date. Cost to sell includes sale commission and regulatory levies but 
exclude transport to market. Transport costs are in fact deducted from market value in order to reach fair 
value. The gain on initial recognition and from a change in this value is recognized in profit or loss. The 
interest on the loan taken out to finance the acquisition is not a cost to sell. The milk is agriculture product 
and is recognized initially under IAS-41 at fair value less cost to sell. (at this point it is taken into inventories 
and dealt with under IAS-2). The gain on initial recognition should be recognized in profit or loss. 

 
3.5 Impairment of Assets  
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Recognising and measuring impairment loss 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss on a non-
revalued asset is recognised in profit or loss. However, an impairment loss on a revalued asset is recognised 
in other comprehensive income to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the 
revaluation surplus for that same asset. Such an impairment loss on a revalued asset reduces the revaluation 
surplus for that asset. 
 
GHAIL assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, GHAIL estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. Irrespective of 
whether there is any indication of impairment, GHAIL tests:  
 
ü an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset not yet available for use for 

impairment annually 
 

3.6 Accounting for lease           
    

Finance lease           
 

Finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an 
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred. 

 
Initial recognition 

 
At the commencement of the lease term, GHAIL recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in their 
statements of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. Any initial 
direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. 

 
Subsequent measurement 

 
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses 
in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
A finance lease gives rise to depreciation expense for depreciable assets as well as finance expense for each 
accounting period. The depreciation policy for depreciable leased assets is consistent with that for 
depreciable assets that are owned, and the depreciation recognised is calculated in accordance with IAS 16 
Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets. If there is no reasonable certainty that the 
lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of 
the lease term and its useful life. 

 
Operating leases 
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
ǘŜǊƳ ǳƴƭŜǎǎ ŀƴƻǘƘŜǊ ǎȅǎǘŜƳŀǘƛŎ ōŀǎƛǎ ƛǎ ƳƻǊŜ ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘŀǘƛǾŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǘƛƳŜ ǇŀǘǘŜǊƴ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ǳǎŜǊΩǎ ōŜƴŜŦƛǘΦ 
 
Applying the requirement of International Financial Reporting Interpretation (IFRI) 4: Determining whether 
an Arrangement contains a Lease, the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) between the Company / Group 
units and BPDB/BREB can be said to contain a lease arrangement. This could be interpreted as resulting in 
the transfer of substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership to the underlying assets 
(power plant) to the off taker (BPDB/BREB) who would effectively be the lessee. However, management 
concluded that the PPA does not transfer substantially all risks incidental to ownership as per the 
requirement of para 17 of IAS 17. As such, all these lease arrangements are considered as an operating lease. 
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3.7  Capitalization of Borrowing Cost 
 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that 
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part 
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur in 
ŀŎŎƻǊŘŀƴŎŜ ǿƛǘƘ L!{ ноΥ ά.ƻǊǊƻǿƛƴƎ ŎƻǎǘέΦ .ƻǊǊƻǿƛƴƎ Ŏƻǎǘǎ Ŏƻƴǎƛǎǘ ƻŦ ƛƴǘŜǊŜǎǘ ŀƴŘ ƻǘƘŜǊ Ŏƻǎǘǎ ǘƘŀǘ ŀƴ Ŝƴǘƛǘȅ 
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
 
Recognition           
GHAIL capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. GHAIL recognises other borrowing costs as an expense 
in the period in which it incurs them.  
   
Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation         
The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure on the qualifying 
asset had not been made. 
 
To the extent that GHAIL borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, GHAIL 
determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actual borrowing costs incurred 
on that borrowing during the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of those 
borrowings  
  
Commencement of capitalisation         
GHAIL begins capitalising borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the commencement 
date. The commencement date for capitalisation is the date when the GHAIL first meets all of the following 
conditions: 
 
ü it incurs expenditures for the asset; 
ü it incurs borrowing costs; and 
ü it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 
  
Cessation of capitalisation           
GHAIL ceases capitalising borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the 
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete. 
 

3.8  Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
Classification 
The Group classifies its financial instruments as financial assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments. 
 
Financial assets 
Financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables and available-for sale financial assets. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or upon 
initial recognition it is designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or loss. 
Held-to-maturity investments 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturity that entity has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.  
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Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not 
quoted in the active market other than held to maturity investments, available for sale financial assets and 
loans and receivables.  
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale 
or are not classified in any of the above categories of financial assets. 
 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss and other financial liabilities. 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial liability is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for-trading or upon 
initial recognition it is designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Other financial liabilities 
Other financial liabilities include bank overdrafts, short-term and long-term loans. 
 
Recognition of financial asset and liability 
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised by GHAIL in its statement of financial position when 
GHAIL becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial asset or financial liability. 
 
Derecognition of financial asset and liability 
A financial asset or financial liability is derecognised; that is, removed, from GHAIL's statement of financial 
position, when GHAIL ceases to be a party to the financial instruments contractual provisions. 
 
Initial measurement 
Financial instruments is measured at the fair value of the consideration given or received (ie cost) plus (in 
most cases) transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial 
instrument.The exception to this rule is where a financial instrument is at fair value through profit or loss. In 
this case transaction costs are immediately recognised in profit or loss. 
  
Transaction costs 
Transaction costs are defined as the incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue 
or disposal of a financial asset or liability. Transaction costs should be added to the initial fair value except for 
financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit or loss where they should be 
recognised in profit or loss. For financial liabilities, directly related costs of issuing debt is deducted from the 
amount of debt initially recognised. 
 
Subsequent measurement of financial assets 
After initial recognition loans and receivables and held-to-maturity (HTM) investments should be remeasured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Certain investments in equity instruments should be 
measured at cost. These are equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market 
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. All other financial assets should be remeasured to fair 
value, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other disposal. Gains and 
losses on remeasurement should be recognised as follows: 
 
ü Changes in the carrying amount of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss should be 

recognised in profit or loss. 
ü Changes in the carrying amount of loans and receivables and HTM investments should be 

recognised in profit or loss. Changes arise when these financial assets are derecognised or impaired 
and through the amortisation process. 

ü In respect of available for sale financial assets: 
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¶  Impairment losses and foreign exchange differences should be recognised in profit or loss. 

¶  Interest on an interest-bearing asset should be calculated using the effective interest method and 
recognised in profit or loss. 

¶  All other gains and losses should be recognised in other comprehensive income and held in a separate 
component in equity. On derecognition, either through sale or impairment, gains and losses previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income should be reclassified to profit or loss, becoming part of the 
gain or loss on derecognition. 

 
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss should be remeasured at fair value, excluding disposal 
costs, and any change in fair value should be recognised in profit or loss. All other financial liabilities should 
be remeasured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Where a liability is carried at 
amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the financial liability is derecognised or 
through the amortisation process. 
 
Impairment 
At each period end, an entity should assess whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of assets is impaired. Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the entity should determine 
the amount of any impairment loss. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
No special impairment tests need to be carried out for such assets, because they are measured at fair value 
and all changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets carried at amortised cost 
The impairment loss is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses which have not been incurred) discounted at the 
financial instrument's original effective interest rate. Note that it is the original rate of interest which is used. 
Using market rates current at the time of the impairment would result in a fair value approach being adopted 
for the measurement of financial assets carried at amortised cost. The amount of the loss should be 
recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets carried at cost 
The impairment loss on unquoted equity instruments carried at cost is the difference between the asset's 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate 
of return for a similar financial instrument. Such impairment losses should not be reversed. 
 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
Because available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value with gains and losses recognised in other 
comprehensive income, short-term falls in fair value will result in debits to other comprehensive income and 
potentially a debit balance held in equity in respect of an individual asset. If the asset is subsequently 
determined to be impaired, the loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income should be 
reclassified to profit or loss, even though the asset has not been derecognised. The impairment loss to be 
reclassified is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) 
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss. 
Impairment losses relating to such equity instruments should not be reversed. Impairment losses relating to 
such debt instruments should be reversed through profit or loss if, in a later period, the fair value of the 
instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the loss was 
recognised. 

 
3.9 Inventories 

Measurement 
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 
 

Cost of inventories 
The cost of inventories are comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

 
Cost formulas 
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost formula. GHAIL shall use the same 
cost formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. 

 
The FIFO formula assumes that the items of inventory that were purchased or produced first are sold first, 
and consequently the items remaining in inventory at the end of the period are those most recently 
purchased or produced. 

 
Recognition as an expense 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net 
realisable value and all losses of inventories is recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss 
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net 
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the 
period in which the reversal occurs. 
 

3.10 Trade and Other Receivables 
Trade and other receivables are stated at their estimated realisable amounts inclusive of provisions for bad 
and doubtful debts 
 

3.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand and with banks on current deposit accounts and short 
term investments (FDR for the period of 1 to 3 months)  which are held and available for use by the Group 
without any restriction. There is insignificant risk of change in value of the same. 

 
 
3.12 Calculation of Recoverable Amount 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value, 
less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash 
flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. 
 

3.13 Provisions, accruals and contingencies         
              

 Recognition 
 
 Provisions 
 

A provision is recognised when: 
 
ü GHAIL has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; 
ü it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation; and 
ü a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

 
 If these conditions are not met, no provision is recognised. 
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 Accruals 
 

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been 
paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amount due to employees. 

 
Contingent Liabilities 

 
GHAIL does not recognise a contingent liability. A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. 

 
Contingent Asset 
 
GHAIL does not recognise a contingent asset. Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other 
unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to GHAIL.  

 
Measurement 

 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. 

 
Changes in provisions 

 
Provisions is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.  

 
Use of provisions 

 
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Only 
expenditures that relate to the original provision are set against it. Setting expenditures against a provision 
that was originally recognised for another purpose would conceal the impact of two different events. 

 
Future operating losses 

 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. Future operating losses do not meet the definition 
of a liability and the general recognition criteria set out for provisions. 

             
3.14 Events Occurring after the Reporting Period 

 
All material events after the statement of financial position date have been considered where appropriate; 
either adjustments have been made or adequately disclosed in the note no. 41.09 of Financial Statements. 
 

3.15 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 

Measurement 
 

 Basic EPS 
GHAIL calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of 
the parent entity.  

 
Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders 
of the parent entity (the numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the 
denominator) during the period. 

 
¢ƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ 5ƛƭǳǘŜŘ ŜŀǊƴƛƴƎǎ ǇŜǊ ǎƘŀǊŜ ƛǎ ǎŀƳŜ ŀs Basic earnings per share. 
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3.16 Dividend distribution on ordinary share 

5ƛǾƛŘŜƴŘ ŘƛǎǘǊƛōǳǘƛƻƴ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǎƘŀǊŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎ ƛǎ ǊŜŎƻƎƴƛǎŜŘ ŀǎ ŀ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘȅ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ƎǊƻǳǇΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ 
ǎǘŀǘŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ǇŜǊƛƻŘ ƛƴ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘƘŜ ŘƛǾƛŘŜƴŘǎ ŀǊŜ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŜŘ ōȅ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǎƘareholders 
 

3.17 Income Statements 
 For the purpose of presentation of Income Statement, the function of expenses method is adopted, as it 

ǊŜǇǊŜǎŜƴǘǎ ŦŀƛǊƭȅ ǘƘŜ ŜƭŜƳŜƴǘǎ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ DǊƻǳǇΩǎ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜ 
 

3.18 Revenue 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms 
of payment and excluding taxes or duty. 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. 

 
 Income from sales 

Revenue from the localsale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. 

 
 Interest and other income 

Interest and other income are recognised on accrual basis. 
 

3.19 Expenses 
All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining the Property, Plant & Equipment in 
a state of efficiency is charged to revenue in arriving at the profit/(loss) for the period. 

 
3.20 Finance Income and Expenses 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognised as it accrues in 
profit or loss. 

 
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, changes in 
the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and losses on hedging instruments that 
are recognised in profit or loss. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest 
method. 

 
The interest expense component of finance lease payments is allocated to each period during the lease term 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

 
3.21 Employee Benefits: 
 

The company maintains provident fund for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is determined 
according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective agreements/trust deeds. 

 
The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the provision of IAS 19: 
Employee Benefits 

 
The cost of employee benefit is charged off as revenue expenditure in the period to which the contributions 
relate. 

 
3.22 ²ƻǊƪŜǊǎΩ tǊƻŦƛǘ tŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘƛƻƴ CǳƴŘ ό²ttCύ 

The Group provides applicable rate of its profit before Tax after charging contribution to WPPF in accordance 
with the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (Amended upto 2015). 
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3.23 Taxation           
              

The tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income 
statement, except in the case it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
        

 Current tax                
The current income tax charge is calculated based on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 
     

 Deferred tax           
 Principle of recognition 

Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense amount within the tax charge, and included in the net 
profit or loss for the period. 
 

 Exceptions to recognition in profit or loss 
Deferred tax relating to items dealt with as other comprehensive income (such as a revaluation) is 
recognised as tax relating to other comprehensive income within the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 
 

Deferred tax relating to items dealt with directly in equity (such as the correction of an error or retrospective 
application of a change in accounting policy) is recognised directly in equity. 

 
Deferred tax resulting from a business combination is included in the initial cost of goodwill.  

 
 Taxable temporary difference 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax 
liability arises from: 

 
ü the initial recognition of goodwill; or 
ü the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination; and 

at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). 
 

 Revaluations to fair value ς property, plant and equipment         
The revaluation does not affect taxable profits in the period of revaluation and consequently, the tax base of 
the asset is not adjusted. Hence a temporary difference arises. This is provided for in full based on the 
difference between carrying amount and tax base. An upward revaluation is therefore give rise to a deferred 
tax liability. 

 
 Non-depreciated revalued assets         

If a deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arises from a non-depreciable asset measured using the 
revaluation model in IAS 16, the measurement of the deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset shall reflect 
the tax consequences of recovering the carrying amount of the non-depreciable asset through sale, 
regardless of the basis of measuring the carrying amount of that asset. Accordingly, if the tax law specifies a 
tax rate applicable to the taxable amount derived from the sale of an asset that differs from the tax rate 
applicable to the taxable amount derived from using an asset, the former rate is applied in measuring the 
deferred tax liability or asset related to a non-depreciable asset. 

 
 Revaluations to fair value ς other assets         

IFRS permit or require certain other assets to be revalued to fair value, such as certain financial instruments 
and investment properties. If the revaluation is recognised in profit or loss (eg fair value through profit or 
loss instruments, investment properties) and the amount is taxable / allowable for tax, then no deferred tax 
arises as both the carrying value and the tax base are adjusted. However, if the revaluation is recognised as 
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other comprehensive income (eg available-for-sale instruments) and does not therefore impact taxable 
profits, then the tax base of the asset is not adjusted and deferred tax arises. This deferred tax is also 
recognised as other comprehensive income. 

 
 Deductible temporary difference 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised, unless 
the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that: 

 
ü is not a business combination; and 
ü at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). 

             
 Unused tax losses and unused tax credits 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and 
unused tax credits can be utilised. 

 
        

3.24 Statement of Cash Flows 
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IAS 7: Statement of 
Cash Flows. The cash generating from operating activities has been reported using the Direct Method as 
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and as the benchmark treatment of IAS 7 whereby 
major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments from operating activities are disclosed. 
 

3.24 Related Party Disclosures 
The Group carried out a number of transactions with related parties. The information as required by BAS 24: 
άwŜƭŀǘŜŘ ǇŀǊǘȅ 5ƛǎŎƭƻǎǳǊŜέ Ƙŀǎ ōŜŜƴ disclosed in a separate notes to the accounts (Note-41.3). 

 
3.25 Segment Reporting 

Segmental information is provided for the different business segments of the Group. Business segmentation 
has been determined based on the nature of goods provided by the Group after considering the risk and 
rewards of each type of product. 

 
Since the individual segments are located close to each other and operate in the same industrial 
environment, the need for geographical segmentation has no material impact. 

 
The activities of the segments are described on notes 40 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The group 
transfers products from one industry segment for use in another. Inter-segment transfers are based on fair 
market prices. 

 
Revenue and expenses directly attributable to each segment are allocated to the respective segments. 
Revenue and expenses not directly attributable to a segment are allocated on the basis of their resource 
utilisation, wherever possible. 
Assets and liabilities directly attributable to each segment are allocated to the respective segments. Assets 
and liabilities, which are not directly attributable to a segment, are allocated on a reasonable basis wherever 
possible. 
 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that are 
expected to be used for more than one accounting period. 

 
!ƭƭ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǎŜƎƳŜƴǘǎΩ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƴƎ ǊŜǎǳƭǘǎ ŀǊŜ ǊŜǾƛŜǿŜŘ ǊŜƎǳƭŀǊƭȅ ǘƻ ƳŀƪŜ ŘŜŎƛǎƛƻƴǎ ŀōƻǳǘ ǊŜǎƻǳǊŎŜǎ ǘƻ ōŜ 
allocated to the segment and assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available. 
 
 

4.            Risk Exposure 
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4.1          Financial risk management         
              

DI!L[Ωǎ ŀŎǘƛǾƛǘƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŜȄǇƻǎŜŘ ǘƻ ŀ ǾŀǊƛŜǘȅ ƻŦ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǊƛǎƪǎΦ ¢ƘŜ /ƻƳǇŀƴȅΩǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ 
centered upon using various tools and to manage exposure to risk, particularly credit risk, liquidity risk, 
market risk, currency risk and interest rate risk. Similar to general risk management, financial risk 
management requires identifying its sources, measuring it, and plans to address them. Taking risk is in the 
ŎƻǊŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΣ ŀƴŘ ƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ Ǌƛǎƪ ƛǎ ŀƴ ƛƴŜǾƛǘŀōƭŜ ŎƻƴǎŜǉǳŜƴŎŜ ƻŦ ōŜƛƴƎ ƛƴ ōǳǎƛƴŜǎǎΦ DI!L[Ωǎ 
aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse 
ŜŦŦŜŎǘǎ ƻƴ DI!L[Ωǎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎƛŀƭ ǇŜǊŦƻǊƳŀƴŎŜΦ 

 
DI!L[Ωǎ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ŀǊŜ ŘŜǎƛƎƴŜŘ ǘƻ ƛŘŜƴǘƛŦȅ ŀƴŘ ŀƴŀƭȅȊŜ ǘƘŜǎŜ ǊƛǎƪǎΣ ǘƻ ǎŜǘ ŀǇǇǊƻǇǊƛŀǘŜ Ǌƛǎƪ 
limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adhere to limits by means of prudent risk management 
policies and application of reliable and up-to-date information systems. GHAIL regularly reviews its risk 
management policies and systems to reflect changes in products, markets, and emerging best practices. 

   
4.2 Credit risk           

              
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer 
contract, leading to a financial loss. The senior management of GHAIL carefully manages its exposure to 
credit risk. Credit exposures arisŜ ǇǊƛƴŎƛǇŀƭƭȅ ƛƴ ǊŜŎŜƛǾŀōƭŜǎ ŦǊƻƳ ŎǳǎǘƻƳŜǊǎΩ ŜȄƛǎǘƛƴƎ ƛƴ DI!L[Ωǎ ŀǎǎŜǘ 
ǇƻǊǘŦƻƭƛƻΦ ¢ƘŜ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ Ǌƛǎƪ ƳŀƴŀƎŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭ ŀǊŜ ŎƻƴǘǊƻƭƭŜŘ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ ŎǊŜŘƛǘ ǇƻƭƛŎƛŜǎ ƻŦ DI!L[Ωǎ ǿƘƛŎƘ 
are updated regularly. The company is also exposed to other credit risks arising from balances with banks 
which are controlled through board approved counterparty limits. 

            
4.3 Liquidity risk           
 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time 
or at a reasonable price. 

 
The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient cash balances or liquid and marketable assets to meet its liabilities when fall due, under both 
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 
reputation. Typically, management ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected 
operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligation through preparation of the cash forecast, 
prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient 
liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date. 

 
4.4 Industry Risks 
 

Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition from foreign and domestic sources leading to lower 
prices, revenues, profit margin, and market share which could have an adverse impact on the business, 
financial condition and results of operation. Frozen foods industry in Bangladesh is an emerging sector with 
vast local demand for its different product lines. Locally produced frozen products now play a significant role 
in this sector, which has been dominated by imports in the past.  
However, the infrastructure required for this industry is inadequate in Bangladesh, as can be noted below: 
 

¶ No organized collection centers for agricultural produce exist in Bangladesh; as a result, there is a high 
fluctuation in prices both for the growers and for processors. 

¶ Absence of Cold Storage or Cold Chains although the whole process of collection, processing and 
distribution depends on cold temperature maintenance due to the nature of the finished product. 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd has established its brand name in Frozen Food market with its quality 
products, range of products and customer services. However, to develop an infrastructure, both public and 
ǇǊƛǾŀǘŜ ǎŜŎǘƻǊ ǇŀǊǘƛŎƛǇŀǘƛƻƴ ƛǎ ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘΦ ¢Ƙƛǎ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ŦƻŎŀƭ Ǉƻƛƴǘ ƻŦ DƻƭŘŜƴ IŀǊǾŜǎǘΩǎ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ŜȄǇŀƴǎƛƻƴ ǇƭŀƴǎΦ ¢ƻ 
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eliminate fluctuation in prices both for the growers and for the processors, Golden Harvest will organize 
collection centers to eliminate intermediary cost for both the parties. Deploying 15,000 refrigerators with 24 
cold storages at -30 degree Celsius nationwide, Golden Harvest will have infrastructure backbone of Cold 
Chain which will ensure proper supply of Frozen Foods all over the country through its 50 temperature 
controlled transport. 

              
4.5  Market risk           
              

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will 
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market 
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while 
optimising the return. 

 
(i)  Currency risk 
   

The company is not exposed to currency risk on revenues because goods are sold in local market with 
local currency and there is insignificant purchase of machineries, parts and equipment.  

     
(ii) Interest rate risk           
              

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. GHAIL again has limited exposure to interest rate since it borrows 
primarily in fixed interest rate, and further, interest rate are fully hedged at project levels too. 

 
4.6 Reporting foreign currency transactions      
 
 Initial recognition      

 
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the 
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency 
at the date of the transaction. 
   

 Subsequent measurement      
A foreign currency transaction may give rise to assets or liabilities that are denominated in a foreign 
ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅΦ ¢ƘŜǎŜ ŀǎǎŜǘǎ ŀƴŘ ƭƛŀōƛƭƛǘƛŜǎ ƛǎ ǘǊŀƴǎƭŀǘŜŘ ƛƴǘƻ DI!L[Ωǎ ŦǳƴŎǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎǳǊǊŜƴŎȅ ŀǘ ŜŀŎƘ ǊŜǇƻǊǘƛƴƎ ŘŀǘŜΦ 
However, translation depends on whether the assets or liabilities are monetary or non-monetary items: 
   

 Monetary items      
Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the end of the reporting date are translated using the 
closing rate. The difference between this amount and the previous carrying amount in functional currency is 
an exchange gain or loss. 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates 
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous 
financial statements is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 

   
 Non-monetary items      

Non-monetary items carried at historic cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction when the asset arose (historical rate). They are not subsequently retranslated in the individual 
financial statements of GHAIL. Non-monetary items carried at fair value are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date when the fair value was determined. The foreign currency fair value of a non-monetary asset 
is determined. 

 
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss 
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on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

  
 Measurement of financial assets     

Financial assets can be monetary or non-monetary and may be carried at fair value or amortised cost. Where 
a financial instrument is denominated in a foreign currency, it is initially recognised at fair value in the 
foreign currency and translated into the functional currency at spot rate. The fair value of the financial 
instrument is usually the same fair value of the consideration given in the case of an asset or received in the 
case of a liability.  

 
At each period end, the foreign currency amount of financial instruments carried at amortised cost is 
translated into the functional currency using either the closing rate (if it is a monetary item) or the historical 
rate (if it is a non-monetary item). Financial instruments carried at fair value are translated to the functional 
currency using the closing spot rate. 

 
 Exchange differences      

The entire change in the carrying amount of a non-monetary available-for-sale financial asset, including the 
effect of changes in foreign currency rates, is reported as other comprehensive income at the reporting date. 

   
A change in the carrying amount of monetary available-for-sale financial assets on subsequent 
measurements is analysed between the foreign exchange component and the fair value movement. The 
foreign exchange component is recognised in profit or loss and the fair value movement is recognised as 
other comprehensive income. 

 
The entire change in the carrying amount of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or 
loss, including the effect of changes in foreign currency rates, is recognised in profit or loss. 
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5.  Property, plant and equipment 

          
            Consolidated 

           
           

Amount in BDT 

            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation 
Written Down 

Value as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as on 
01.07.2018 

Addition for 
the year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as on    
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged for  
the year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

At historical cost: 
    

 

     
Land and land development 773,277,206 - - 773,277,206 0.0% - - - - 773,277,206 
Buildings and other constructions 722,275,342 - - 722,275,342 2.5% 47,103,877 4,219,821 - 51,323,698 670,951,644 
Plant and machinery 600,520,828 1,255,873 - 601,776,701 5.0% 121,709,975 5,993,098 - 127,703,073 474,073,628 
Office Equipment 32,931,929 846,297 - 33,778,226 10% 10,995,234 553,058 - 11,548,292 22,229,934 
Furniture and Fixtures 48,577,934 1,500 - 48,579,434 10% 21,902,691 666,918 - 22,569,609 26,009,825 
Vehicle 

 
206,715,290 82,000 - 206,797,290 10% 56,420,684 3,759,416 - 60,180,100 146,617,190 

Freezer 
 

1,514,851,832 782,990 - 1,515,634,822 10% 304,252,695 30,269,978 - 334,522,673 1,181,112,149 

A. Sub total of 30.09.2018 3,899,150,360 2,968,660 - 3,902,119,021 
 

562,385,156 45,462,289 - 607,847,445 3,294,271,576 

At revaluation: 
          

Land and land development 213,821,556 - - 213,821,556 0.0% - - - - 213,821,556 
Buildings and other constructions 165,683,091 - - 165,683,091 2.5% 26,603,385 869,248 - 27,472,633 138,210,458 
Plant and machinery 85,028,928 - - 85,028,928 5.0% 27,257,699 722,140 - 27,979,839 57,049,089 

B. Sub total of 30.09.2018 464,533,575 - - 464,533,575 
 

53,861,084 1,591,388 - 55,452,472 409,081,103 

Total (A+B) of 30.09.2018 4,363,683,935 2,968,660 - 4,366,652,596 
 

616,246,240 47,053,677 - 663,299,917 3,703,352,679 

Total of 30.06.2018 3,581,336,189 787,758,614 5,410,867 4,363,683,936 
 

469,821,125 148,733,737 2,308,622 616,246,240 3,747,437,696 

 
5.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under: 

      
          

Particulars Factory 
Rate of Dep. 

(%)  
General and  

Admin. 
Rate of Dep. 

(%) 
Selling and 
Distribution 

Rate of Dep. 
(%) 

Total 

At historical cost 
        

Factory & office building 1,863,076 99% 
 

- 0% 2,356,745 1% 4,219,821 
Plant & machinery 5,993,098 100% 

 
- 0% - 0% 5,993,098 

Furniture & fixture 276,530 50% 
 

221,223 40% 55,306 10% 553,058 
Office equipment's 233,421 35% 

 
333,460 50% 100,038 15% 666,918 

Vehicles 
 

1,807,139 10% 
 

412,226 30% 1,540,051 60% 3,759,416 
Freezer 

 
3,977,134 

  
- 0% 26,292,844 100% 30,269,978 
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Sub total 
 

14,150,398 
  

966,909 
 

30,344,984 
 

45,462,289 

At revaluation 
         

Buildings and other constructions 869,248 100% 
 

- 0% - 0% 869,248 
Plant & machinery 722,140 100% 

 
- 0% - 0% 722,140 

Sub total 
 

1,591,388 
  

- 
 

- 
 

1,591,388 

          Grand total 
 

15,741,786 
  

966,909 
 

30,344,984 
 

47,053,677 

           
Note (i). Land & Building are mortgaged and Plant & Machinery and equipments are hypothecated with Mercantile Bank Ltd. , Gulshan Branch against term loan and 
working capital (CC hypo) facilities according to their sanction terms.  
Note (ii). The Company (GHAIL) and its subsidiary company Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. (GHICL) revalued the Lands, Buildings, and Plant & Machinery as of 30 June 2009, 
2011 and 2013 by the Valuer, Ata Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants following "Current Cost Method", resulting the following surplus: 

 
5A.  Property, plant and equipment 

          
The Company 

           
            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation Written 
Down Value 

as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as on 
01.07.2018 

Addition for 
the year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as on    
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged 
for  the 

year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

At historical cost: 
    

 

     
Land and land development 236,336,936 - - 236,336,936 0.0% - - - - 236,336,936 
Buildings and other constructions 311,812,859 - - 311,812,859 2.5% 37,693,127 1,713,248 - 39,406,375 272,406,484 
Plant and machinery 137,138,042 138,000 - 137,276,042 5.0% 33,850,222 1,291,991 - 35,142,213 102,133,829 
Office equipment 9,227,504 198,175 - 9,425,679 10% 3,357,658 148,469 - 3,506,127 5,919,552 
Furniture and fixtures 39,029,376 - - 39,029,376 10% 17,901,477 528,197 - 18,429,674 20,599,702 
Vehicle 

 
12,267,605 - - 12,267,605 10% 5,309,895 173,943 - 5,483,838 6,783,767 

Freezer 
 

544,372,318 - - 544,372,318 10% 129,000,036 10,384,307 - 139,384,343 404,987,975 

5A. Sub total of 30.09.2018 1,290,184,640 336,175 - 1,290,520,815 
 

227,112,415 14,240,155 - 241,352,570 1,049,168,245 

            At revaluation: 
          

Land and land development 112,033,188 - - 112,033,188 0.0% - - - - 112,033,188 
Buildings and other constructions 165,683,091 - - 165,683,091 2.5% 26,603,385 869,248 - 27,472,633 138,210,458 
Plant and machinery 41,576,975 - - 41,576,975 5.0% 13,276,939 353,750 - 13,630,689 27,946,286 

B. Sub total of 30.09.2018 319,293,254 - - 319,293,254 
 

39,880,324 1,222,998 - 41,103,322 278,189,932 

Total (A+B) of 30.09.2018 1,609,477,894 336,175 - 1,609,814,069 
 

266,992,739 15,463,153 - 282,455,892 1,327,358,177 

Total of 30.06.2018 1,280,318,968 334,569,793 5,410,867 1,609,477,894 
 

229,052,212 40,249,149 2,308,622 266,992,739 1,342,485,155 
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5A.1  Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers  as under : 
        

            

Particulars 
 

Factory 
Rate of Dep. 

(%)  

General 
and  

Admin. 

Rate 
of 

Dep. 
(%) 

 
Selling & 

Distribution 

Rate 
of 

Dep. 
(%) 

 
Total 

At historical cost 
          

Factory and office building 1,713,248 100% 
 

- 0% 
 

- 0% 
 

1,713,248 
Plant and machinery 1,291,991 100% 

 
- 0% 

 
- 0% 

 
1,291,991 

Office equipments 74,235 50% 
 

59,388 40% 
 

14,847 10% 
 

148,469 
Furniture and fixture 184,869 35% 

 
264,099 50% 

 
79,230 15% 

 
528,197 

Vehicles 
 

17,394 10% 
 

52,183 30% 
 

104,366 60% 
 

173,943 
Freezer 

 
- 

  
- 0% 

 
10,384,307 100% 

 
10,384,307 

Sub total 
 

3,281,737 
  

375,670 
  

10,582,750 
  

14,240,155 

At revaluation 
           

Buildings and other constructions 869,248 100% 
 

- 0% 
 

- 0% 
 

869,248 
Plant and machinery 353,750 100% 

 
- 0% 

 
- 0% 

 
353,750 

Sub total 
 

1,222,998 
  

- 
  

- 
  

1,222,998 

            Grand total 
 

4,504,735 
  

375,670 
  

10,582,750 
  

15,463,153 

 
6.  Leased  assets (Finance lease) 

          
            Consolidated 

           
           

Amount in BDT 

            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation 
Written Down 

Value as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Addition 
for the 
year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged 
for  the 

year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Vehicle 
 

93,463,458 - - 93,463,458 10% 28,228,672 1,630,870 - 29,859,542 63,603,916 
Freezer 

 
20,002,000 28,670,000 

 
48,672,000 10% 115,080 497,173 

 
612,253 48,059,747 

Total of 30.09.2018 
 

113,465,458 28,670,000 - 142,135,458 
 

28,343,752 2,128,043 - 29,859,542 111,663,663 

Total of 30.06.2018 
 

95,958,458 20,002,000 2,495,000 113,465,458 
 

22,176,123 7,493,313 1,325,684 28,343,752 85,121,706 
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6.1  Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers  as under : 
        

            

Particulars 
 

Factory Rate of Dep. (%) 
 

General 
and  

Admin. 

Rate of 
Dep. (%)  

Selling & 
Distribution 

Rate of 
Dep. (%)  

Total 

Vehicles 
 

- 0% 
 

452,759 20% 
 

924,942 80% 
 

1,630,870 
Freezer 

    
- 

  
497,173 100% 

 
497,173 

Total 
 

- 
  

452,759 
  

1,422,115 
  

2,128,043 

 
6A.  Leased  assets (Finance lease) 

          
The Company 

           
            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation Written 
Down 

Value as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Addition 
for the 
year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged for  
the year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Vehicle 
 

30,373,571 - - 30,373,571 10% 15,772,727 365,021 
 

16,137,748 14,235,823 
Freezer 

 
20,002,000 - 

 
20,002,000 10% 115,080 497,173 

 
612,253 19,389,747 

Total of 30.09.2018 
 

50,375,571 - - 50,375,571 
 

15,887,807 862,194 - 16,137,748 33,625,570 

Total of 30.06.2018 
 

32,868,571 20,002,000 2,495,000 50,375,571 
 

15,346,171 1,867,320 1,325,684 15,887,807 34,487,764 

 
6A.1  Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers  as under 

:         

            

Particulars 
 

Factory 
Rate of Dep. 

(%)  

General 
and  

Admin. 

Rate of 
Dep. (%)  

Selling and 
Distribution 

Rate of 
Dep. (%)  

Total 

Vehicles 
 

- - 
 

73,004 20% 
 

292,017 80% 365,021 
Freezer 

     
0% 

 
497,173 100% 497,173 

Total 
 

- 
  

73,004 
  

789,190 
  

862,194 
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7.  Intangible Assets 

          
            Consolidated 

           
           

Amount in BDT 

            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation 
Written Down 

Value as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Addition 
for the 
year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged 
for  the 

year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Software (at development stage) 37,914,397 - - 37,914,397 0% - - - - 37,914,397 
Design, construction and development of products 58,515,350 - - 58,515,350 10% 9,578,828 1,223,413 - 10,802,241 47,713,109 
Augmented Reality 378,375 - - 378,375 10% 102,540 6,896 - 109,436 268,939 

Total of 30.09.2018 
 

96,808,122 - - 96,808,122 
 

9,681,368 1,230,309 - 10,911,677 85,896,445 

Total of 30.06.2018 
 

96,505,122 303,000 - 96,808,122 
 

4,213,329 5,468,039 - 9,681,368 87,126,754 

 
7.1  Amortization has been charged on different cost centers  as under : 

     
         

Particulars 
 

Factory 
Rate of Dep. 

(%) 

General 
and  

Admin. 

Rate of Dep. 
(%) 

Selling & 
Distribution 

Rate of Dep. (%) Total 

Software 
 

- 0% - 0% - 0% - 
Design, construction and 
development of products 

- 0% - 0% 1,223,413 100% 1,223,413 

Augmented Reality - 0% - 0% 6,896 100% 6,896 

         Total 
 

- 
 

- 
 

1,230,309 
 

1,230,309 

 
7 A .  Intangible Assets 

          
The Company 

           
            

Particulars 

Cost/Valuation 

R
a

te
 

Depreciation Written 
Down 

Value as of  
30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Addition 
for the 
year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance as 
on    

30.09.18 

Balance as 
on 

01.07.2018 

Charged 
for  the 

year 

Disposal 
for the 
year 

Balance 
as on    

30.09.18 

Software (at development stage) 26,397,268 - - 26,397,268 0% - - - - 26,397,268 

Design, construction and development of products 30,481,678 - - 30,481,678 10% 4,419,843 651,546 - 5,071,389 25,410,289 

Total of 30.09.2018 56,878,946 - - 56,878,946 
 

4,419,843 651,546 - 5,071,389 51,807,557 

Total of 30.06.2018 56,675,946 203,000 - 56,878,946 
 

1,524,084 2,895,759 - 4,419,843 52,459,103 
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7A.1  Amortization has been charged on different cost centers  as under : 

     
         

Particulars Factory Rate of Dep. (%) 
General 

and  
Admin. 

Rate of Dep. (%) 
Selling and 
Distribution 

Rate of Dep. (%) Total 

Software 
 

- 0% - 0% - 0% - 

Design, construction and development of products 
 

651,546 100% - 0% 651,546 

         Total 
 

- 
 

651,546.00 
 

- 
 

651,546.00 
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 Amount in BDT  

      
30-Sep-18 30-Jun-18 

                8.  Biological assets 
    

  

 
Dryer 

    
             924,493               279,549  

 
Milkable Cows 

    
         53,501,605           49,662,792  

 
Heifers 

    
         16,590,222           18,538,632  

 
Calves 

    
           3,837,845             3,074,385  

 
Bull 

    
           5,067,032             8,918,148  

      
      79,921,197        80,473,506  

 
8.1 Details are as follows: 

     
        

  
Calves Heifers 

Milkable 
Cows 

Dryer Bull Total 

 
Carrying amount 3,074,385 18,538,632 49,662,792 279,549 8,918,148 80,473,506 

 
Add: Purchase Costs - - - - - - 

 
Less: Transfer/ Sales - (2,652,245) 2,076,721 575,524 (3,943,929) (3,943,929) 

 
Add / (Less): Fair value adjustments 763,460 703,835 1,762,092 69,420 92,813 3,391,620 

  
3,837,845 16,590,222 53,501,605 924,493 5,067,032 79,921,197 

 
8.1.1 Fair value adjustments 

     

  
Calves Heifers 

Milkable 
Cows 

Dryer Bull Total 

 
Changes in Fair Value 806,187 733,297 2,795,480 116,175 186,438 4,637,578 

 
Less: Cost to sell (42,728) (29,463) (1,033,388) (46,754) (93,624) (1,245,958) 

  
763,460 703,835 1,762,092 69,420 92,813 3,391,620 

 
 
9 Capital work in progress 

             
 

Opening balance 
    

       401,375,144         613,618,985  

 
Addition during the period 

   
         12,956,385         211,166,930  

 
Disposal of CWIP regarding Machinary 

  
                     -          (158,276,628) 

 
Transferred to property, plant and equipment 

  
                     -          (265,134,143) 

      
    414,331,529      401,375,144  

 
9A. Capital work in progress 

     
 

Opening Balance 
    

350,804,247 488,911,940 

 
Addition during the period 

   
12,956,385 50,987,780 

 
Disposal of CWIP regarding Machinary 

   
(71,790,672) 

 
Transferred to property, plant and equipment 

  
- (117,304,801) 

      
363,760,632 350,804,247 

 
10. Investment in subsidiary companies 

    
 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream ltd. 
 

(Note - 10.01) 
 

895,712,654 851,853,929 

 
Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 

 
(Note - 10.02) 

 
17,372,308 19,021,021 

      
913,084,962 870,874,950 

 
10.01 Golden Harvest Ice Cream ltd. 

     
 

Opening balance 
    

851,853,929 735,838,295 

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
- 4,202,438 

 
Share of net profit after tax of subsidiary 

  
43,729,787 111,270,307 

 
Share of change of revalued amount of PPE 

  
128,938 542,889 

      
895,712,654 851,853,929 
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10.02 Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 

     
 

Opening balance 
    

19,021,021 22,515,836 

 
Share of net loss after tax of subsidiary 

  
(1,648,713) (3,494,815) 

      
17,372,308 19,021,021 

 
11. Investment in associates 

     
 

Golden Harvest QSR Ltd. 
     

 
Opening Balance 

    
300,000 300,000 

 
Less: Attributable Share of Loss of Associate 

  
300,000 300,000 

      
- - 

        
 

Share of accumulated loss of Associates during the period is Tk. 365,191 (Tk. 1,217,302 x 30%) 
 

 
12. Inventories 

      
 

Finished goods 
    

284,881,787 252,335,745 

 
Raw materials 

    
234,763,072 218,468,498 

 
Packing materials 

    
116,450,948 111,272,020 

 
Work in process 

    
368,852 532,552 

 
Stationaries & Spair Parts 

   
3,052,245 - 

 
Stores in transit 

    
10,574,145 11,206,639 

 
Medicine 

    
85,622 120,651 

      
650,176,671 593,936,105 

 
12A. Inventories 

      
 

Finished goods 
    

127,238,142 95,685,520 

 
Raw materials 

    
103,903,314 85,325,466 

 
Packing materials 

    
53,409,316 48,755,268 

 
Stationaries & Spair Parts 

   
3,052,245 - 

 
Stores in transit 

    
4,654,728 947,164 

      
292,257,745 230,713,418 

 
13. Advances, deposits and prepayments 

    
 

Advance to contract farmer, suppliers & service providers 
 

258,289,557 254,539,671 

 
Advance against Flat purchased 

   
136,412,078 103,780,225 

 
Advance for assets purchases 

   
32,484,000 - 

 
Advance taxes 

    
58,258,619 50,959,895 

 
Advance VAT 

    
8,617,014 7,901,385 

 
Advance office rent 

    
4,922,000 5,064,000 

 
Other deposit 

    
1,850,907 550,908 

 
Lease deposits 

    
2,517,141 2,517,141 

      
503,351,316 425,313,225 

 
This is unsecured and considered good. 

    
 

(a)  The maximum amount due from the suppliers & service providers. 
  

 
(b) No amount was due by the directors, managing agent, managers and other officers of the company and 
any of them severally or jointly with any other person. 

 
13A. Advances, deposits and prepayments 

    
 

Advance to contract farmer, suppliers & service providers 
 

247,503,767 246,827,207 

 
Advance taxes 

    
14,218,456 13,971,826 

 
Advance VAT 

    
5,915,772 6,173,601 

 
Other Deposit 

    
154,930 154,931 

 
Lease deposits 

    
1,177,796 1,177,796 

      
268,970,721 268,305,361 
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14. Trade and other receivables 

     
 

Trade receivables 
 

(Note - 14.01) 
  

615,749,033 610,846,197 

 
Other receivables 

 
(Note - 14.02) 

  
559,303,443 555,091,251 

      
1,175,052,476 1,165,937,448 

 
14.01 Trade receivables 

      
        
 

Sales receivables 
    

615,749,033 610,846,197 

      
615,749,033 610,846,197 

        
 

Aging Schedule of Trade Receivable 
    

 
Account Name 

Upto 90 
days 

Upto 180 
days 

Over 180 
days 

2018 2018 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd 99,855,624 135,821,129 16,549,670 252,226,423 242,325,938 

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd 183,254,152 168,285,521 11,325,366 362,865,039 368,146,942 

 
Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd 657,572 

  
657,572 373,317 

        

 
This is unsecured, considered good except for the portion of doubtful debtors and is falling due within one 
period. Classification schedule as required by schedule XI of Companies Act 1994 are as follows: 

 
 

SL Particulars 
  Consolidate 

amount in BDT  
2018  

  Consolidate 
amount in BDT  

2018  

I Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured                        -    

II Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which the company holds no 
security other than the debtor personal security 

       615,749,033         610,846,197  

III Accounts receivable considered doubtful or bad                        -    

IV Accounts receivable due by any director or other officer of the company                         -    

V Accounts receivable due by Common management                        -    

VI 
The maximum amount of receivable due by any director or other officer of the 
company 

                       -    

  TOTAL     615,749,033      610,846,197  

 
14.02 Other receivables 

       
 

Interest receivable 
    

70,093 
 

102,006 

 
Intercompany transaction (Note - 14.03) 

  
559,233,350 

 
554,989,245 

      
559,303,443 

 
555,091,251 

         
 

This is unsecured, considered good and is falling due within one period. 
   

 
14.03 Inter company transaction 

     
 

Samdani Art Foundation 
   

         25,543,051           25,487,067  

 
Golden Harvest Foods Ltd. 

   
       298,286,542         297,161,147  

 
Golden Harvest InfoTech Ltd. 

   
         84,953,001           84,953,001  

 
Golden Harvest Developers Ltd. 

   
         52,076,943           53,681,577  

 
Golden Harvest QSR Ltd. 

   
         98,373,813           93,706,453  

 
  

   
    559,233,350      554,989,245  

 
14A. Trade and other receivables 

     
 

Trade receivable 
 

(Note - 14A.01) 
 

252,226,423 242,325,938 

 
Other receivable 

 
(Note - 14A.02) 

 
754,652,362 751,772,147 

      
1,006,878,785 994,098,085 
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14A.01 Trade receivables 

      
 

Sales receivables 
    

252,226,423 242,325,938 

      
252,226,423 242,325,938 

 
14A.02 Other receivables 

      
 

Interest receivable 
    

- 31,913 

 
Inter company transaction (Note - 14A.03) 

 
754,652,362 751,740,234 

      
754,652,362 751,772,147 

 
14A.03 Inter company transaction 

     
 

Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 
   

22,197,814 22,623,486 

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 

   
428,817,583 424,833,236 

 
Golden Harvest InfoTech Ltd. 

   
84,953,001 84,953,001 

 
Golden Harvest Developers Ltd. 

   
52,076,943 53,681,577 

 
Samdani Art Foundation 

   
25,543,051 25,487,067 

 
Golden Harvest Foods Ltd. 

   
42,690,157 46,455,414 

 
Golden Harvest QSR Ltd. 

   
98,373,813 93,706,453 

      
754,652,362 751,740,234 

 
This is unsecured and considered good. 

    
 
15. Cash and cash equivalents 

     
 

Cash in hand: 
    

11,203,919 1,547,256 

 
Cash in hand at head office 

  
2,934,264 97,017 

 
Cash in hand at factory office 

  
8,269,655 1,450,239 

 
Cash at bank 

    
70,685,406 5,100,847 

 
Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturity within 1 to 3 months) 

 
8,538,483 7,880,124 

      
90,427,808 14,528,227 

 
Fixed Deposits are lien against LC margin 

    
 
15A. Cash and cash equivalents 

     
        
 

Cash in hand: 
    

9,515,722 238,358 

 
Cash in hand at head office 

  
2,804,243 4,243 

 
Cash in hand at factory & Depot office 

  
6,711,479 234,115 

 
Cash at bank 

    
5,508,363 1,173,528 

 
Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturity within 1 to 3 months) 

 
- 1,021,230 

      
15,024,085 2,433,116 

 
Details of cash at bank is given at annex-A 

    
 
16. Share capital 

      
        
 

Authorized share capital 
   

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 

 
200,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each 

    
        
 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 
    

 
58,750,000 ordinary share @ Tk. 10 each fully paid-up against cash 

 
587,500,000 587,500,000 

 
45,258,900 bonus share @ Tk. 10 each 

  
452,589,000 452,589,000 

 
5,000,000 ordinary share @ Tk. 10 each fully paid-up against 
acquisition of shares of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited  

50,000,000 50,000,000 

      
1,090,089,000 1,090,089,000 
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The above balance has been received from the following : 
   

       
Name Designation 

% of Shares No. of Shares 

30-09-2018 30-06-2018 30-09-2018 30-06-2018 

Directors 
      

Mr. Enamuzzaman Chowdhury Chairman 2.00 2.00 2,180,178 2,180,178 
Mr. Matthew Graham Stock Director - - - - 

Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 
Managing 
Director 

21.94 21.94 23,912,861 23,912,861 

Mr. Ahmed Mehdi Samdani Sponsor 0.38 0.38 408,980 408,980 
Ms. Nadia Khalil Choudhury Director 2.00 2.00 2,180,178 2,180,178 

Mr. Azizul Huque 
 

Director 2.26 2.26 2,463,264 2,463,264 
Mr. Moqsud Ahmed Khan Director 2.46 2.46 2,683,296 2,683,296 

Mr. Mohius Samad Choudhury Director 2.00 2.00 2,180,178 2,180,178 

   
33.03 33.03 36,008,935 36,008,935 

 
Others 

      Foreign investors                      -                   1.60                       -               1,747,239  
Institutions 

 
              39.92               39.08           43,513,057           42,602,948  

General shareholders                 27.05               26.28           29,486,908           28,649,778  

   
           66.97              66.97          72,999,965        72,999,965  

       

   
              100              100.0      109,008,900      109,008,900  

 
 

Range with shareholding position: 
     

        Range of holdings No. of shareholders % of shareholders Number of shares 

In number of shares 30-Sep-18 2018 30-Sep-18 2018 30-Sep-18 2018 

1 to 499 5,010 5,431 0.455 0.469 590,157 630,730 
500 to 5,000 4,982 5,133 0.452 0.444 5,705,002 5,660,298 
5,001 to 10,000 425 406 0.039 0.035 3,185,557 3,059,875 
10,001 to 20,000 259 260 0.024 0.022 3,812,655 3,772,292 
20,001 to 30,000 101 102 0.009 0.009 2,497,878 2,555,380 
30,001 to 40,000 42 46 0.004 0.004 1,501,980 1,617,861 
40,001 to 50,000 56 36 0.005 0.003 2,655,806 1,667,627 
50,001 to 100,000 64 75 0.006 0.006 4,889,042 5,533,285 
100,001 to 1,000,000 58 64 0.005 0.006 14,988,544 14,766,690 
Over 1,000,000 16 17 0.001 0.001 69,182,279 69,744,862 

Total 11,013 11,570 1.00 1.00 109,008,900 109,008,900 

 
Shareholding position of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd: 

    

Name Designation 
% of Shares 

Value of  shares  
@ BDT 10 

30-Sep-18 2018 30-Sep-18 
 

Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 
 

Managing Director 0.0002% 0.0002% 600 600 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. Parent company 99.9998% 99.9998% 299,999,400 299,999,400 

    
100% 100% 300,000,000 300,000,000 

 
Shareholding position of Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd: 

    
        

Name Designation 
% of Shares 

Value of  shares  
@ BDT 10 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani 
 

Managing Director 25.00% 25.00% 12,500,000 12,500,000 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. Parent company 75.00% 75.00% 37,500,000 37,500,000 

    
100% 100% 50,000,000 50,000,000 
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17. Share premium 

      
 

Share premium received 
   

450,000,000 450,000,000 

 
Bonus Share 

    
(271,089,000) (271,089,000) 

 
IPO expenses: 

    
(41,233,946) (41,233,946) 

 
Income tax (3% on premium) 

   
(13,500,000) (13,500,000) 

 
IPO cost 

    
(25,927,742) (25,927,742) 

 
Exchange gain / (loss) 

   
(1,806,204) (1,806,204) 

      
137,677,054 137,677,054 

 
18. Revaluation surplus 

      
 

Opening balance 
    

283,316,706 278,351,144 
 

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
- 9,765,503 

 
 

Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings 
 

(1,156,700) (4,799,941) 
 

 
Depreciation of the company 

  
(917,247) (3,791,716) 

 
 

Depreciation of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 
 

(239,453) (1,008,225) 
 

         
      

282,160,006 283,316,706 
 

         

 

The Company revalued its lands, buildings, and plant & machinery as of 30 June 2013 by its Valuer, Ata Khan & 
Co, Chartered Accountants following "Current cost method", resulting in a revaluation surplus at BDT 
128,671,642 for Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. and BDT 51,419,359 for Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 
which include non controlling interest part BDT 103. 

 
18A. Revaluation surplus 

     
        
 

Opening balance 
    

283,316,706 278,351,144 

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
- 9,765,503 

 
Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred to retained earnings 

 
(1,156,700) (4,799,941) 

 
Depreciation of the company 

  
(917,247) (3,791,716) 

 
Depreciation of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 

 
(239,453) (1,008,225) 

 
Depreciation of Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 

   
      

282,160,006 283,316,706 

 
19. Retained earnings 

      
        
 

Opening balance 
    

920,797,701 693,397,688 

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
- (2,079,368) 

 
Deferred tax adjustment on Dep. of revalued amount of PPE 

 
434,688 1,806,795 

 
Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred 

  
1,156,700 4,799,941 

 
Net profit after tax 

    
69,658,982 221,707,930 

 
Share of non-controlling interest 

   
549,484 1,164,715 

        
      

992,597,555 920,797,701 

 
19A. Retained earnings 

              
 

Opening balance 
    

       920,797,701         693,397,688  

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
                     -             (2,079,368) 

 
Deferred tax adjustment on dep. of revalued amount of PPE 

 
             434,688             1,806,795  

 
Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred  

  
           1,156,700             4,799,941  

 
Net profit after tax 

    
         70,208,466         222,872,645  

      
    992,597,555      920,797,701  
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20. Non controlling interest 

     
        
 

Opening balance 
    

           6,342,044             7,506,750  

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
                     -                           9  

 
Share of Net profit after tax for the period (GHICL) 

  
                     87                     223  

 
Share of Net profit after tax for the period (GHDL) 

  
            (549,571)          (1,164,939) 

 
Share of deferred tax adjustment on revaluation Surplus 

 
                     (1)                        1  

      
        5,792,559          6,342,044  

 
21. Long term loans 

       
         
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 
  

984,423,563 975,271,439 
 

 
Corporate Bond 

    
358,876,517 351,883,463 

 
 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., HP-2 
   

3,340,982 3,233,556 
 

 
Mercantile Bank Ltd., HBL 

   
12,516,506 13,700,415 

 
 

IPDC Finance Ltd 
    

221,065,323 218,501,845 
 

 
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Term Loan-Agri 

  
166,869,642 165,367,504 

 
 

Mercantile Bank Limited 
   

163,765,535 161,504,116 
 

 
Mercantile Bank Limited 

   
11,269,611 11,424,700 

 
 

IPDC Finance Ltd 
    

46,719,447 49,655,841 
 

         
 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited 
  

1,342,403,247 1,327,835,967 
 

 
Syndicated Loan ( UCBL and Standard Bank Limited) 

 
444,829,006 478,847,610 

 
 

United Commercial Bank Ltd., Term Loan-2 
  

573,522,013 544,288,357 
 

 
Standard Bank Ltd. 

    
314,052,228 304,700,000 

 
 

CAPM Venture Capital & Finance Ltd 
  

10,000,000 
  

         
 

Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 
   

156,688,740 155,618,441 
 

 
Standard Bank Ltd., Term Loan -1 

   
55,581,171 55,282,963 

 
 

Standard Bank Ltd., Term Loan -2 
   

101,107,569 100,335,478 
 

         
      

2,483,515,549 2,458,725,847 
 

         
 

Current maturity of long term loan 
   

(443,247,267) (420,462,647) 
 

      
2,040,268,282 2,038,263,200 

 
         
 

The above term loan is for the dairy project for which two drawdown has been made against one term loan. 

 
So two loan has been created. 

 
 

 

 
Terms & conditions of Long Term Loan: 

   
a) Golden Harvest Agro Ind. Ltd. In Note 21A 

 
b) Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 

    
 

Syndicated loan, 
    

444,829,006 478,847,610 

 
United Commercial Bank Ltd. Term loan-1 

  
124,811,692 138,640,192 

 
Standard Bank Ltd 

    
320,017,314 340,207,418 

 
Current maturity of long term loan 

   
(228,570,632) (212,225,455) 

      
216,258,375 266,622,155 

         
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. has taken syndicated term loan  facility amounting Tk.70 crore for establishment of Ice 
Cream project and will utilise the loan amount to imported machineries and meet other expenditure for 
implementation of the project. 
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Particulars 
Rate of 
Interest 

Tenure 
Repayment 

Term 
Security 

       

United Commercial Bank Ltd.,  
A/C # 095CTLN141710501 

12.00% 5 Years 

20 Quarterly 
installment 

starting from 
17 

September 
2015. 

The loans from banks are secured 
first ranking pari-passu charge by 
way of hypothecation duly 
registered with RJSC for all 
machineries of the Project and 
distribution HUBs in favour of the 
term loan lenders duly insured 
covering the all risk as per 
insurance policy, 115 Decim Land 
at Gazipur, 10,190,000 nos shares 
of GHAIL,  a first ranking floating 
charge over the stocks, 
receivables, all current and future 
fixed & floating assets in favour 
of the term loan lenders on pari 
passu and pro rata basis. The 
loans are also secured by 
personal guarantee of all 
directors except independent 
director of the Company and  
One post dated cheque covering 
the full limit & 20 post dated 
cheques covering the value of 
each installment. 

Standard Bank Ltd., A/C No.A/C # 
01781100001 

12.00% 5 Years 

20 Quarterly 
installment 

starting from 
31 May 
2016. 

United Commercial Bank Ltd., 
A/C # 095CTLN153570001 

12.00% 5 Years 

Quarterly 
(Starting 

from March 
2017) 

United Commercial Bank Ltd., 
A/C # 095CTLN180840001 

12.00% 5 Years 

Quarterly 
(Starting 
from Jul 
2019) 

Standard Bank Ltd., A/C No.A/C # 
01780300001 

12.00% 5 Years 

20 Quarterly 
installment 

starting from 
15 May 
2019. 

1. Registered deed of mortgage 
of 537.34 decimal land, 2. First 
Ranking Pari Passu Fixed and 
Floating charge, registered with 
RJSC, over all current and future 
fixed and floating assets, 3. 
Corporate Guarantee from 
GHAIL, 4. 20(Twenty) Post dated 
cheques favoring SBL 

CAPM Venture Capital & Finance 
Limited 

12.25% 5 Years 
60 (Sixty) 

months from 
30 Sep 2018 

Cash Security 30 Lac & Registered 
Mortgage & IGPA on 378.91 
decimal and 192.60 decimal land 
totaling 571.51 decimal land at 
Sylhet. 

 

c) Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 
     

        
      

156,688,740 155,618,441 

 
Standard Bank Ltd., Term Loan -1 

   
55,581,171 55,282,963 

 
Standard Bank Ltd., Term Loan -2 

   
101,107,569 100,335,478 

        

 
Particulars 

Rate of 
Interest 

Tenure 
Repayment 

Term 
Security 

 
Standard Bank Ltd., A/C No- 
01786200002 

13.00% 5 Years 
60 Monthly 
installment 

The loans from banks are secured 
by Registered mortgaged 300 
decimal land and Building & 
machineries situated within 
Fatehpur, Goainghat, Sylhet. The 
loans are also secured by 
personal guarantee of all 
directors of the Company. 

 
Standard Bank Ltd., A/C No- 
01786200007 

13.00% 5 Years 
60 Monthly 
installment 
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21A. Long term loan 

      
 

Corporate Bond 
    

358,876,517 351,883,463 

 
IPDC Finance Ltd 

    
221,065,323 218,501,845 

 
Mercantile Bank Ltd., HP-2 

   
3,340,982 3,233,556 

 
Mercantile Bank Ltd., HBL 

   
12,516,506 13,700,415 

 
Mercantile Bank Ltd., Term Loan- Agri 

  
166,869,642 165,367,504 

 
Mercantile Bank Limited 

   
163,765,535 161,504,116 

 
Mercantile Bank Limited 

   
11,269,611 11,424,700 

 
IPDC Finance Ltd 

    
46,719,447 49,655,841 

      
984,423,563 975,271,439 

 
Current maturity of long term loan 

   
(179,907,169) (174,573,685) 

      
804,516,393 800,697,754 

 

Terms & conditions of term loan: 
          The Company is enjoying term loan facility against imported machineries and House building loan has 

 taken for expansion of Factory Building from Mercantile bank, Gulshan Branch.  
Terms & Conditions of the loan is as below: 
 

Particulars 
Rate of 
Interest 

Tenor 
Repayment 

Term 
Security 

       

Mercantile Bank Ltd, HP-2 13.00% 5 Years 

Monthly 
(Starting 

from 22 May 
2015) 

a. Hypothecation of the capital 
machineries and stock in trade,  
b. Personal guarantee of all the 
directors  
c. Post dated cheques 
d. Registered mortgage 
supported by registered IGPA 
favouring the bank against all 
bank facilities on 99.00 decimal 
land with factory building 

Mercantile Bank Ltd, HBL 13.00% 5 Years 

Monthly 
(Starting 
from 24 
October 
2014) 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., Term Loan- 
Agri 

13.00% 5 Years 
LTR is for 90 
Days (RM 
and PM) 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., Term Loan 13.00% 7 Years 

Monthly 
(Starting 
from 26 

December 
2018) 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., Term Loan 13.00% 5 Years 

Monthly 
(Starting 

from 31 July 
2018) 

IPDC Finance Ltd. 15.50% 5 Years Quarterly 1. Ranking charge on altftoating 
assets of GHAIL duty registered 
with RJSC.  2. Personal Guarantee 
(PG) of the all directors of GHAIL. 
3. Post Dated Cheques. 4. Other 
UsuaL Charge documents. 

IPDC Finance Ltd. 15.50% 5 Years 

Monthly 
(Starting 

from 22 April 
2018) 

Fully redeemable Non-
convertible, Unsecured Corporate 
Bond 

Floor-10% 
Ceiling-11.5% 
Margin-3% 

7 Years 

At the end of Years 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 & 7 at the rate of 
15%  
for the first 4 years and 20% for the last two years 
of issue size respectively 
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22. Deferred tax liability 
     

 
Opening balance 

    
       223,584,535         199,314,341  

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

   
                     -             (7,686,147) 

 
Adjustment during the period on fixed assets at cost 

  
           9,131,996           34,039,596  

 
Less : During the period on revaluation 

  
            (434,687)          (1,806,796) 

 
During the period on business loss 

   
            (281,478)             (276,459) 

      
    232,000,366      223,584,535  

 
22A. Deferred tax liability 

     
        
 

Opening balance 
    

       100,609,367           94,041,276  

 
Adjustment for changes of tax rates 

    
         (3,483,701) 

 
Adjustment during the period on fixed assets at cost 

  
           1,157,100           11,315,698  

 
Less : During the period on revaluation 

  
            (305,750)          (1,263,906) 

        
      

    101,460,717      100,609,367  

 
23. Lease obligations 

     
       
 

United Finance Ltd. 
   

- 105,334 

 
National Finance Limited 

  
8,020,688 8,621,764 

 
IDLC Finance Ltd. 

   
759,917 1,069,155 

 
Union Capital Limited 

  
5,576,274 6,167,538 

 
Industrial Promotion and Development Company Ltd. (IPDC) 10,612,789 11,074,430 

 
Hajj Finance Ltd 

   
20,000,000 - 

 
BD Finance Investment Ltd. 

  
13,005,958 14,550,855 

 
United Finance Ltd. 

   
12,843,525 14,602,970 

     
70,819,151 56,192,045 

 
Current maturity of lease obligation 

  
(29,644,803) (24,990,293) 

     
41,174,348 31,201,753 

 
23A. Lease obligations 

      
        
 

BD Finance Investment Ltd. 
   

           1,597,282             1,749,057  

 
United Finance Ltd. 

    
         12,843,525           14,602,970  

 
United Finance Ltd. 

    
                     -                 105,334  

      
         14,440,807           16,457,360  

 
Current maturity of lease obligation 

   
       (10,004,069)          (9,788,301) 

      
        4,436,738          6,669,059  

 
24. Accounts & other payables 

     
        
 

Sundry creditors for goods & service 
  

         94,583,109           78,545,814  

 
Undistributed refund warrant 

   
           5,278,743             5,278,743  

 
Security deposits for freezer 

   
         20,871,553           22,580,347  

 
Withholding tax and VAT 

   
           8,634,324           10,300,064  

 
Undistributed dividend 

   
           3,277,015             3,277,015  

 
Bank interest payable 

    
             175,719               150,353  

      
    132,820,463      120,132,335  
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24A. Accounts & other payables 

     

 
Sundry creditors for goods and service 

  
         31,214,010           30,088,895  

 
Undistributed refund warrant 

   
           5,278,743             5,278,743  

 
Security deposits for freezer 

   
           3,604,240             3,604,240  

 
Withholding tax and VAT 

   
             700,365             1,523,931  

 
Undistributed dividend 

   
           3,277,015             3,277,015  

      
      44,074,373        43,772,824  

 
25. Accruals and provisions 

     
 

Salaries and wages 
    

         14,096,108             4,508,226  

 
Utility  bills 

    
           2,252,456             3,710,230  

 
Audit fees 

    
             828,000               632,500  

 
Mobile phone bill 

    
             376,586               360,784  

 
TA/DA and incentive 

    
           1,238,113             1,272,458  

 
Provision for tax 

 
(Note - 25.01) 

  
       228,621,685         223,834,067  

 
Provision for WPPF 

 
(Note - 25.02) 

  
         24,272,014           19,322,754  

 
Provision for others 

    
           8,725,054             7,028,822  

      
    280,410,016      260,669,841  

 
25.01 Provision for tax 

      
 

Opening balance 
    

       223,834,067         192,857,480  

 
(Over) /Under provision for previous  periods 

  
             448,523           41,859,004  

 
Tax during the period 

    
         10,339,095           30,740,623  

      
         (6,000,000)        (41,623,040) 

 
AIT adjustment 

    
                     -             (5,823,412) 

 
Tax paid during the period 

   
         (6,000,000)        (35,799,628) 

      
    228,621,685      223,834,067  

 
25.02 Provision for workers profit participation fund 

    
 

Opening balance 
    

19,322,754 16,993,054 

 
Addition during the period 

   
4,586,958 16,642,721 

 
Interest charged for the period 

   
362,302 186,979 

 
Payment during the period 

   
- (14,500,000) 

      
24,272,014 19,322,754 

 
25A. Accruals and provisions 

     

 
Salaries and wages 

    
           7,368,935             2,158,297  

 
Utility  bills 

    
           1,126,228             1,385,011  

 
Audit fees 

    
             575,000               460,000  

 
TA/DA and incentive 

    
             475,987               390,242  

 
Provision for income tax (Note - 25A.01) 

 
       106,317,969         105,291,017  

 
Provision for WPPF 

 
(Note - 25A.02) 

 
         12,110,436           10,204,254  

 
Provision for others 

    
           3,939,872             3,178,482  

      
    131,914,426      123,067,303  
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25A.01 Provision for tax 

      
 

Opening balance 
    

       105,291,017           94,222,474  

 
(Over) /Under provision for previous  periods 

  
             428,398           15,799,124  

 
Provision for the period 

   
           4,598,554           16,047,558  

      
         (4,000,000)        (20,778,138) 

 
AIT adjustment 

    
                     -                         -    

 
Tax paid during the period 

   
         (4,000,000)        (20,778,138) 

      
    106,317,969      105,291,017  

 
25A.02 Provision for workers profit participation fund 

    
 

Opening balance 
    

         10,204,254           11,134,513  

 
Addition during the period 

   
           1,714,852             7,909,653  

 
Interest charged for the period 

   
             191,330               160,088  

 
Paid during the period 

    
         (9,000,000) 

      
      12,110,436        10,204,254  

 
26. Short term loan 

      
        
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited (Note - 26.01) 
 

       493,930,733         455,602,445  

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited 

 
(Note - 26.02) 

 
       557,410,112         534,951,613  

 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 

   
         54,951,221           53,168,645  

      
 1,106,292,065   1,043,722,703  

 
 
26.01 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

    
 

Mercantile Bank Limited-CC Hypo 
   

       317,150,876         309,869,567  

 
Mercantile Bank Limited 

   
                     -                         -    

 
Industrial and Infractructure Development Finance Company Limited                      -                         -    

 
MBL LTR 

      
 

National Finance Ltd. 
    

         50,000,000           17,122,462  

 
Meghna Bank Ltd. 

    
                     -                         -    

 
Union Capital Limited 

   
       123,622,841         128,610,416  

 
Mercantile Bank Limited-LATR 

   
           3,157,016                       -    

      
    493,930,733      455,602,445  

 
26.02 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited 

    
 

United Commercial Bank Ltd.-SOD 
  

       410,598,128         404,476,401  

 
Fareast Finance & Investment Ltd. 

   
         45,930,369           48,858,987  

 
United Commercial Bank Ltd.-UPAS LC 

  
         61,975,919           51,616,224  

 
Hajj Finance Limited 

    
         30,275,740           30,000,000  

 
Standard Bank Ltd LC 

    
           8,133,450  

 
 

United Commercial Bank-LTR 
   

             496,505  
 

      
    557,410,112      534,951,613  

 
26.03 Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 

     
 

Standard Bank Limited 
   

         54,951,221           53,168,645  

      
      54,951,221        53,168,645  
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Terms & conditions of Short Term Loan: 

    
a) Golden Harvest Agro Ind. Ltd. In Note 26A 

    
b) Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 

     

 
Particulars 

Rate of 
Interest 

Tenor Security 

 
United Commercial Bank Ltd.-

SOD 
12.00% 

Working 
Capital 

a. Hypothecation of raw materials, work in 
process & finished products duly insured 
covering Fire & RSD under Bank's Mortgage 
clause,  
b, Up to date receivable statement to be 
provided on quarterly basis 

 
Fareast Finance & Investment 

Ltd. 
16.00% 

Short Term 
loan (3 

Months) 
Personal Security of directors 

 
United Commercial Bank Ltd.-

UPAS LC 
12.00% LC 

a. Lien of Shipping documents & title of the 
goods,  
b. Your acceptance against UPASS LC 

 
Standard Bank Ltd.-UPAS LC 12.00% LC 

a. Lien of Shipping documents & title of the 
goods,  
b. Your acceptance against UPASS LC 

 
Hajj Finance  Ltd. 14.00% 

Short Term 
loan (12 
Months) 

1. Existing stock of raw materials of ice 
cream, 2. Personal Security of directors, 3. 
12 (TwelveJ post-dated cheques for realizing 
the monthly 
profit and 01 (One) cheque covering entire 
financing amount. 

 
b) Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 

     

 

Particulars 
Rate of 
Interest 

Tenor Security 

 

Standard Bank Ltd., A/C No- 
Hypo- 01770300175 

13.00% Revolving 

The loans from banks are secured by 
Registered mortgaged 300 decimal land and 
Building & machineries situated within 
Fatehpur, Goainghat, Sylhet. The loans are 
also secured by personal guarantee of all 
directors of the Company. 

 
26A. Short term loan 

      
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited (Note - 26A.01)        493,930,733         455,602,445  

      
    493,930,733      455,602,445  

 
26A.01 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

    
 

Mercantile Bank Limited-CC Hypo 
   

       317,150,876         309,869,567  

 
National Finance Ltd. 

    
         50,000,000           17,122,462  

 
Union Capital Limited 

   
       123,622,841         128,610,416  

 
Mercantile Bank Limited-LATR 

   
           3,157,016                       -    

      
    493,930,733      455,602,445  

 
 
 
 




